Regular City Council Meeting

November 23, 2020
Agenda
7:30 p.m. Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

Approval of City Council Minutes: November 9, 2020
Approval of Bills: None

Approval of Agenda

Consent Agenda

1. Zoning Board of Appeals Appointment

Public Comment

Discussion - Downtown

Fire Chief Report
Police Chief Report
MERS Presentation
I.  Old Business
I. New Business
1. MERS Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement
OI.  Budget
v Manager’s Report
V.  Public Comment
VI.  Council Comments
VIL.  Closed Session: “Closed session pursuant to Sections 8(e) and (h) of the Open Meetings Act,
MCL 125.268e and (h), at the request of the City Manager to conduct performance evaluation.”
VII. Adjournment .

“Please see reverse side for rules of conduct for public comment at City Council meetings*



City of South Lyon
Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2020

Mayor Pelchat called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. R
Mayor Pelchat led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

Present: Mayor Pelchat, Councilmembers: Dilg, Kennedy, Kivell, Richards and Walton
Also, present: City Manager Zelenak, Attorney Hamameh and Clerk/Treasurer Deaton

Mayor Pelchat stated Councilmember Kurtzweil informed him she wiiik
meeting or will be absent.
CM 11-1-20 MOTION TO APPROVE ABSENCE
Motion by Dilg, supported by Walton >
- - - ’," . /
Motion to approve Councilmember Kurtzwell//s/ ence //\//////

either be late attending the

.

VOTE: MOTION CARRIEE | NANIMOUSLY "

MINUTES > ///////

CM 11-2-20 MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTE% //Z/////
Motion by Kennedy, supported/y'y ilg /4/////////// ////////
Motion to approve the minutes 4 //fé%}ted .

VOTE: MOTION Z/@/; UNANIV LY

BILLS e /////// " ////////

CM 11:3:20 MOTION 1 & %y/ﬁ THE B
Motion by Ken %upporteﬁ/{ v Dilg

. s .
Motion to approve ﬂ;égy ills B
/Z/}//% ) /% onl? ', buh

.
VOTE: N OTION C K D
Né////% “
o

AGENDA -
K 7, //;
cM 11-4@?@%40T10N TQ OVE/'E//
Motiarzby Dil Helby Keringly
oo Gapprove ths a5kt s presiied
R genda as p

CM 11-5-20 MOTION TO ’__3, THE CONSENT AGENDA

1. Kiwanis Christmas'tree sale in McHattie Park

Motion by Kennedy, supported by Walton

Motion to approve the consent agenda as presented
VOTE: MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
PUBLIC COMMENT- None

DISCUSSION- Downtown
Nate Mack stated he is working with the applicant for the tax abatement at 302 S Lafayette which is the
* Marathon gas station. He stated he has asked them for more documentation for their project. Mr, Mack

11-9-20



reminded everyone of the first of the two annual DDA meetings will be this Thursday after the regular
DDA meeting and the 2*¢ one will be held November 19 from 6:30-7:30 and both will be electronic
meetings. He further stated he attended the Cultural Arts Commission meeting and discussed the 390 S
Lafayette proposal that was discussed at the last meeting and they had a lot of good ideas, they proposed a
sculpture or art park and a few places for people to sit and they are considering approaching Jeff
Heinanen regarding possibly a mural on the side of this building to add more vibrancy to that space. He
further stated the DDA has been successful in getting a grant for $500.00 for the mural on the side of the
Grande Trunk building. He stated it will begin in the spring of 2021. He has spoken with Susan Stowe
and the person she has in mind to paint the mural will not be available until the fall and we don’t have
money budgeted this year. Mr. Mack stated the Farmers Market Wrapped up on Halloween and he wanted
to thank Tim Davids for the great job he did despite all the proble///;{/ﬁlsed by COVID, the market was
very successful. Customer and vendor attendance were strong

) % é/Mack stated the winners of the
downtown scarecrow contest have been announced, and the/,/ ,;/ / ere Active Faith, the Dance Center
and the Lyon Theatre. We had a total of 18 scarecrows. / z@ /he Lyon Task Force was
recognized for the Show Your Love for Lyon campai -a’e awarded th 2 t marketmg and promotions
project for communities over 10,000. e stated we/ 0 peted against Dear /m Ferndale and Marquette
and we are happy we received that award. Councrlé /nber Kennedy stated wé/% e issued 16 of the 18
checks to the businesses from the Patronicity campalgg/ d asked ﬁ, ictures we %ken while he was
giving out the checks. Mr. Mack stated there were pxetu/@ } he will post th /é /nlme there are
two more businesses he hasn’t been ablef@ “be in contact w //%r/ ot. Counmlmembe%whards asked
who took the tree down at the 110 Detroi t%{// / ack stated the property owner had the
tree removed and at a meeting the owner § t% ///’ the building demolished. He will be

h
% //E Ing to Hage 1
contacting the owner shortly. Discussion wa//sf Id r ///)//4//211 the tax tement for the Marathon station

///é//'

which will be d1scuss% a/t/ 7 /ouncﬂ m e}//}//;/g when

&
//
FIRE CHIEF REPORY: //, ////
Fire Chief Vogel stated thé}/j /dder truc’k////’ ill be out 615

/ / rvice again this week, the onboard generator
:elzed and 1E % e}/ g/? ng t ,///////% % s 2/%): g %;[‘or aI lsi)ort tlm(e1 Chllef \Cfiogel :er:amlileti.h ;
VGTYOI% ,/W / / /- //,,' 1ty ,,,////// ;a//r v‘//ma wn and we live close to each other an

if you g / mo < /} % ¢ aren’t Green Oak or Lyon Township; we don’t

ssue b erm t 13/ .rmatie /?1 the Fire Départments website and we have had a few
mmdents r %}/}1}7 and it stres - %/r ,,,9 Chief Vogel stated the smoke detector program has really
taken off and u%ave recently §}/” Jled ano ”t/éé 10 detectors. He stated it has been really positive, but
now we need mc{/g’emoke detecto /;/// e1is askmg Home Depot and Lowes for donations. Anyone can
donate 10-year batté%/y/ ' smoke dete ///1"5 and he is asking for grants. He then stated he has a meeting with
the State tomorrow abo{t/ o /r// the COVID numbers are going. Councilmember Kennedy
congratulated Chief Vog //j/ / / nt for the second LUCAS device. He then stated he gave Nate Mack
someone’s contact mformat}(/ﬁ/ﬁ/ém Lowe’s that is locking to make a donation to the City a few weeks
ago, he asked if he could reach out to that person again and ask if they would be interested in donating
smoke detectors. He then stated that person made a donation to the Lyon Township Fire Department.
Maybe they will make a donation to our Fire Department in the form of the smoke detectors Chief Vogel
mentioned.

///

tement/// es before Council.

POLICE CHIEF REPORT

Chief Sovik stated Halloween was a success, although we didn’t see the numbers as we have in years
past, we were still able to give out all the candy and no complaints. It was a goed event to get back to
some normalgy. He stated the Police had a heavy presence at the polling locations and there were no

11-9-20



issues and everything was very peaceful and calm. He then thanked Lisa Deaton and her staff for
everything that was done to prepare for the Election and he appreciates what she and her staff has done
for the Election. Chief Sovik stated the new Police Officer Joseph Czapski will be starting on the 17" of
this month and he is a 5-year veteran. Chief Sovik stated they are once again participating with the Wigs
for Kids program which it’s basically a no shave November where some of our Officers will be donning
some facial hair for a monetary contribution they make. This is the 3 year for this program. They
provide money and funds who are suffering from diseases with hair loss, it provides them a new sense of
pride for them. If you want to make a donation, you can stop by the station or go to their Facebook page.
Councilmember Richards stated he has given out the current phone number to reach the Police
Department and he asked when the new phone system will be mstalled Chief Sovik stated their phones
have been an issue¢ for a long time, we have a phone number that 1 d 248-348-0911. He further
stated he will be meeting with Comcast tomorrow to see what/%: anges need to be made. We will

k hing to get it ible.
eep pushing to get it in as soon as possible ////////
OLD BUSINESS / /////////
1. Fieldstone planned development (PD) yé76 ‘”i and final site plé;v/a, proval

Kelly Mcntyre of CIB Planning stated the F1elds( /, evelopment is a 50 unit %{aehed single family
development. It is on an 11.65 acre of irregular shap%f%arcel Whl/ch orders on the fajlroad and a dirt
road. The applicant has chosen to use the planned deve @er&f /ﬁ he developmeni? //j§he stated the
4 T
planned development is done in 4 stages% /s i /& 2, a public hearm 1s conducted by
. i ’/////,
the Planning Commission, then Council4g /////%/ 1l ON a rezor jg/g/ which would be first reading, and the
approval of the preliminary plan develop :%1/1 g /3 /’/:// me Commission reviews and makes a
recommendation to Council, and stage 4is wﬁﬁ)e we // /ij} eading of the rezoning and a
////// // /// // J//r
final site plan approval a d The ﬁrst }}1 % 4 of this year. She stated the
/// L Ry /?%/// k4
rezoning is changing 1; o f //f %/ t PD and to approve the
preliminary plan devel / /ent ite pla / //é The 51te l % app oves the layout of the
o

& K
development, 1nclud1ng th ad 01rcu1 - tion the utlh the number of housing units, the minimum unit

acreage or sq /// // ////0/ //3% ! @%ow the buildability of the lots by showing the
bulldmg %/e (o} /,/// //////,/ ({ //e ( /////// & pl;%nmary site plan approval included a list of
co %}//;}1 {E / /& ) t size, f/{ 176 /) crage that were accepted and approved. The

prelimin@/ﬁv} site plan ap ;91 f//;/ pa rt of the anned development agreement between the

developer /ﬁ/the City. She ﬁ/ tated d zoning and the final site plan are tied together. The final
o (gated T heg
site plan 1ncludé }ngme ring detﬁls house j/}ns elevations, and color. A majority was reviewed and
addressed durmg Lf rehmmary r ///\uew She then stated on September 24" the Planning Commission
approved the plannéd d%le/velo men th conditions. The conditions have been addressed and are part of
the site plan. The result”f/} com é ite plan without any zoning issues at all. Ms. McIntyre stated an
agreement, a master deed Z%/ / c1at10n bylaw are required to be submitted. The documents have all
been reviewed by multiple pe@p)e She stated she recommends the second reading to amend the zoning
map this property from RM1 to planned development (PD) and also to recommend the final site plan
approval. Councilmember Kivell stated there was a reference about the wall that was going to be all
siding. Ms. Mclntyre stated that is referenced on page 2 of the agenda note, item 12. It states
wainscoting be used on Units 27 and 28 side elevations. Councilmember Kivell then stated the other
question is there seems to be some miscommunication between the developer’s comments which reflected
all the communities they typically are working in always use the same language about the antimonotony
clause. He stated our language seems a bit more stringent than what they were suggesting. Ms. Mclntyre
stated the Planning Commission wanted more restrictions than what was originally discussed. We are

now looking at an agreement that is consistent with the Knolls and so the applicant gave us more

11-9-20



clarification on what defines considered a separate fagade or colors so we do not have monotony.
Councilmember Kennedy stated he just wants to make sure the streets will remain private and will not
become the property of the City, which it is reflected in the agreement. Councilmember Kivell asked
about the private road construction. Ms. MclIntyre stated the streets are required to meet City standards
for public roads and they will remain private roads.

CM 11-6-20 MOTION TO APPROVE SECOND READING
Motion by Kennedy, supported by Dilg
Motion to approve the second reading of an ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map of the
City of South Lyon incorporated in to the South Lyon Zoning:Ordinance by Section 102-182 by
rezoning the property (parcel 21-19-126-002) more fully %ﬁed in the attached Exhibit A (the
property) from the RM-1 District (multiple family e} ”I‘/{/to the PD District (planned

o Y o\

- i
Rictgf o //////////////
/1; -Yes /////////
Ken%;g} Ye 5 ////////
Pelchat e S //
N %- 1 OPPOSED

/ N R
///////// I\;IOTIO Qx/jé//////

0
] VELOPME%%E@E INAL PLAN FOR FIELDSTONE

Motion by Kennedy, supported by Kiell %%///// / {/{//’//Zf// ,’
fy//.,

Motion to approvehe Blanned Devel?/gﬁlent Firf (Sfage I lan for Fieldstone for
i e T e
a b ;

condominiumsFarcel numbey,21-16-126 01 .. Approval of and rezoning of Parcel
y > D2 aihiectte | app &
No 21-19-126%% rom mat pl R 54%/ ///%elopmem, PD the planned

{ /ﬁ ile family, K] lanned 'd
. from multipl ily, RN 16
% Y kK p

i G 4 L
development agre%, mas?e{/deed, and by efvzs be approved and recorded by the City; 3.

. - v G, -
| anid pe e ozl bath Tiéal ants. departm .
iev%f//{ép%?; En\.f //}‘/%/% Zf%;fk—zgzé}%%leefgg i(l)lrifltllite I{tz;d%Jomm?E:?éztSf Oakland
fé%/n//}é]/ : ///W//// ) . , W////// e
4’%{/ / , / ’ ////
ROLL //oé}{'/ D1lg-4”"% es

I, VOTE: //////// .
///// Richards- No

.
//j////j//g/ Walton- Yes
Kennedy- Yes
Kivell- Yes
Pelchat- Yes
MOTION CARRIED- 1 OPPOSED

%

\\\\
‘\\\
\\

2. Water and Sewer rate adjustment

City Manager Zelenak stated the City of South Lyon had a water and sewer rate analysis performed to
ascertain the proper rate structure for the City. The recommendations were made at the May and July
Council Meetings to adjust the rates to compensate for $10 million in improvements that are currently
underway and planned within the next several years. If rates are adjusted beginning with the next billing
cycle, the customers will be billed beginning April 1. Brian Camiller of Plante Moran stated there have
been no changes to the analysis since the last discussion. He stated Council asked for a kind of split the
difference option from the original options, so Plante Moran came up with option #3. He then showed a
brief PowerPoint presentation that can be viewed in the council packet. Mr. Camiller stated there will

11-5-20



always be future construction, repairs and future reconstruction that will have to take place. He further
stated in addition to the annual rate increase, there is a change in philosophy. Currently the City has a
minimum bill and you have a modest meter charge. He recommends replacing both of those with a RTS
which is a ready to service charge and the elimination of the minimum bill. The readiness to serve charge
is a fixed fee on every bill that pays for a portion of the City’s overhead to providing water and sewer
service. So even if you don’t turn on your faucet, there is still costs incurred in operating the system so
when you do turn on the faucet, there is water. He stated the RTS will provide a portion of the overhead.
Option 3 will provide the RTS charge will provide 18% of the overhead costs which is fairly modest.
When you change to a higher fixed number on every bill, depending on the volume, the customer will be
affected differently. A smaller bill may get hit harder, a larger may b / it less because the RTS is greater
than your fixed meter charge was, but at the same time, if you use/l,é// . Vater, you’re not getting hit with
the minimum fee. He explained that everyone will be treated d'z ’fez ‘tly in year 1, in year 2 and forward,
rates change the same for everyone. Everyone will see a rate///’f/?:l%/ ach year. Mr. Camiller explained
option I called for a 10% increase, option 2 called for a /25 / /c/reasc///; tion 3 calls for an increase in

water from $2.46 up to $2.48 per unit which is a 9% /}n/eﬁSe and sewet % /'1 5% increase which is
from $4.50 per unit to $4.68 per unit. The readinessto %

e{ve charge was § /@/a quarter and under option
3, it will be $23.81 per quarter. He then explaine ///// /%{/’

,,/-am if you are only using4 ,//ﬁ/}/umt you are only

paying for one unit instead of the old minimum bill Wﬁ h _was a seyen unit min tj}fl/i}» Mr. Camiller

stated a low-end volume user will see a sllght decrease %/ gﬁr will see an 1%‘ ase because they

, / /% ’e// : o K
are using a lot more water, the eommergl -Volume cust ' ill see a 6% increase’ He stated the
// ,

next step is for Council to approve the ra A /entatlon date. As soon as the rate

increase, the BS&A will need to be updateé/ﬁv tﬁf{ﬁ/:é/// rate st ue e Councilmember Dilg asked how

this information is going to be commumcatedﬁe th e I 1”6’ )% {4/// er Zelenak stated the first
%

avenue will be to add 1nf ét{/h % ’%d //{%/websne We will have things
27

§

% ///
posted at City Hall. I—I/ Al /4 //// /’///{// A h

1 o0 14 with the water tank so people can
actually see the dollar/@i//%/ %7{ //// /{{ W we are saving money by not
having to go out for a bo /{{// /@ -year perloél; e w111 be saving money by not borrowing the
money. Coung /; ///5/ & /y 2% }w be m,j%/e paper before the next bill is mailed so the
press releaséiehon e /é /// /t// ol /”?t ;/a’ ation. Councilmember Dilg asked if Council

/5//// - /// . //////» Uithat o o
///22 v of th ﬁj{//// /{ty Man&ge,;y/e enak answered yes. Councilmember Walton
Al /f k é t Co nell mber Kivell stated this is a very important place
for us to be/4f’} what our osts e % //’be Nobody wants to seem like we are trying to pick
people’s poek/g)ut none of thi { ff'is mexp/e/‘:nswe we need to be responsible and we have found a
sweet spot to lanc{,// ifwith this rate t/ructure that we can accomplish the assets and improvements that we
need to do without /j/’g really punﬁtz;’ € on our residents and businesses. He is grateful this worked out
the way it did. He furtfl ?t ated { } //’/ ave had this conversation for many different councils and no one
was ever ready to follow tk /'u ' is is a big step for us. Mayor Pelchat stated that says a lot and it
needed to be addressed imme od ;a ly He then thanked Mr. Camiller for explaining this for us.
CM 11-8-20 MOTION TO APPROVE WATER AND SEWER RATE CHANGES
Motion by Kennedy, supported by Dilg
Motion to approve the recommended changes in the water and sewer rates for the upcoming year
with option #3 which reflects the 18% increase
ROLL CALL VOTE: Kennedy- Yes
Kivell- Yes
Dilg- Yes
Richards- Yes
Walton- Yes

,//////

/////

11-9-20



Pelchat- Yes .
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

NEW BUSINESS
1. Purchase to upgrade the electronic and controls for well house #6 and well house #7 at
McHattie Park to improve communication and control the pumps at the wells from SCADA
equipment
Superintendent Varney stated the pump for well #6 is currently controlled in a lead/lag configuration with
the newly drilled well #7. The current configuration needs to be modified and was delayed by UIS until
the dedicated line for #7 was complete. To run the new pump in the newly installed water lines as part of

well #6. This is a scheduled purchase from this years budget and ¢ ’Zé”’purchased from Capital
Improvements account 592-556-970 for $12, 475.00.
CM 11-9-20 MOTION TO WAIVE BID PROCESS

Motion by Kennedy, supported by Kivell

b
Motion to waive Sec 2-224 of the City of So //7%/ yon Code of @nc%, “approval for
purchases or contracts over $2,000; competitive bi% Wi
o
W

o or purchases or bic g over $5,000” because
no advantage to the City will result from competitis f/////?/lddin g %/f////////
ROLL CALL VOTE: KivellZyes ////%/

Kennedy 7Yes L
Dilg- Yes%//%// / ///////

_ %, Richards- Yes
//Z/////////////// //'/'/-R/,%f%”f:ten- Yes /%
. Pelchasy
- /////// IOTION CARRIED U
CM 11-10-20 MOTTI //{/c//g/) APPR//PURCH@//
Motion by Kenn d;_i%/&supporte;/ %ﬁy Dilg ? _
Moti(}%ty//f/l prove ?ﬁ%ﬁ;ﬁ%@%ﬁ%%’%mm //%ﬁ:@ade to well #6 and well #7 for the amount of
@zé/////é/d/%%e line ifeff 59 /2/%/%;@ |
ROLL %ﬁ”//v/////// %/////// //%/f/@)/ Yes
////% //// ///’// Kennédy- Yes
_ // /5/%’/ Walton- Y.
%%//// %/‘%// //%/2////// Rizha?rriis— ;Zs

/ Dilg- Yes
. Pelchat- Yes
/////////%/ // MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

MANAGER’S REPORT

City Manager Zelenak stated we have received a rezoning request for the proposed Holly Hills
Development which is the industrial property on Dixboro Road. They are requesting to conditionally
rezone the property to residential. The development has more than 60 lots with additional greenspace and
that will come before the next Planning Commission meeting.

City Manager Zelenak stated the water tank walls are up. The roof is being installed and the interior work
of the tank has begun. You can still visit the website to see up to the minute reports.

11-9-20



City Manager Zelenak stated we are reviewing proposals and inquiries that were submitted to develop on
the former site of the SLARA building on West Lake Street. Our evaluation team has requested
additional information from the interested parties to better determine the best candidate for the site.
City Manager Zelenak stated now that the Election is over, we are now getting back to working on the
Capital Improvement Plan and Purchases Plan for the City. He stated he’s been meeting with department
heads on future purchases of equipment, vehicles and updating their facilities. The plan will contain
sections of City Hall, Downtown, Police, Fire, DPW, Water/Sewer, roads, parks and other City
properties. City Manager Zelenak stated he is providing Council with updated information on the Nyhart
report with an added appendix to the GASB 75 actuarial valuation. City Manager Zelenak stated staff
have been meeting regarding the ever-changing environment with C / and the Fire Chief has a
meeting with the State tomorrow to get more information. City M ik é/’ Zelenak stated the City staff
should be recognized for the exceptional job this year with prg):/é%/ // and ensuring everyone’s
constitutional rights were able to be exercised in both the Au_ 1 a ﬂ ovember Election. The Clerk’s
{ the 1f1f|/1510n of hundreds of extra phone

office and everyone else in City Hall, worked very hard to //d/
calls, visits from the public, and the 200% increase m ///}nee ballot app{// }TZIODS and subsequent ballots.
Our public safety staff provided added security at allz/ 4 lling location, a@h&: DPW employees helped
out with the set up/take down of equipment. Clerg aton stated the Election % / ery busy and
everyone worked really well together. The turnout a§ )}0% and 1 Iy 016 the turn: u/t’/f as only 70%. She
further stated of the 80%, 50% voted by absentee ballot wg /c/1 efl (f o to vote in per; ,/g%/@, She then
i L
thanked the Police and Fire Departmeng, %’F ! ;‘4 their training room“as a polling
location, and again thanked the Police D/ ; % n} for mamtal ing.a police presence at all the polling
locations, it was very much appreciated. /rk /” e j;g/ W for assisting with the setup and
tear down for the Flection. She thanked all (e /ﬁEIect @;

\\\\\\

\

nked
{/gectors We g)uld not do this without them.
Clerk Deaton then stated ”’ ids), /g gr cat] §}/as alway //4/// { Carol, Patricia, Mary and Tara
and all the staff at City “% /j / er stated we have a wonderful
//// 7, //
group of people that /gre {(ﬁm /
// /
PUBLICCOMMENT b, 4 @
Kelly Breariiiiii /y/// %/////‘/// _ // t// //// . :
Kelly Bre // //// /// Statg// % also fﬁvants Council to see her as a colleague. She is
%/{ e Novi Cily /% ///0 11//;/ o } about local government and she would like to
echo a StlC e ent someone 1{9 oned ¢ o a}" ier to the C(%c and her department regarding this Election. She
stated she 1%97 ry active with { P %};/ncmal League, especially on their legislative policy
Clerks and their de/ ts for the:// new ways that people are voting, and know that she has heard
nothing but Wonderftﬂ‘thm s and tg /é
election workers with th;/s’;unpreceﬂeﬂted turnout. She further stated it has been a great day and month for
democracy. She then tat 70/%5 Coungcil and the residents to know they can consider her an ally.
When it comes to utility rates/
acquainted with Councilmember Dilg and she has asked her to give everyone her cell number during this
want to know anything about her, let her know. She wants to be as resourceful as possible and she wants
to represent the entire district, not just Novi. She is here for everyone. She stated she has lived here her
kids, her husband is an educator, her dad is 74 years old and is still teaching. She further stated her heart
is here and she would normally be holding town hall meetings, and meeting for coffee, but until the virus’

/////’ /,/// // 5
she is pass %
ik pasig
B enici
committee fo %j}mcmal serv1ces/% nd electi @/md she knows how hard this Election has been on local
1 thr /ur Clerk and her entire department, massive kudos to all the
.

Creased costs for Elections, communications with the public, she is
period of transition, and of course when she officially takes her post, remember it is an open door. If you
whole life, she is an attorney by trade, but her heart is in public service. She further stated she has two
is under control that isn’t possible. She then stated she has spoken with the attorney general regarding

11-9-20



virtual town hall meetings, and we are all going to work together to be as resourceful as possible. She
stated she is honored and grateful to serve the entire 38% District and contact her anytime.

COUNCIL COMMENTS

Councilmember Dilg congratulated our local officials, first to our hometown County Commission Phil
Wiepert who is the hardest working man in South Lyon and welcome him back to representing us at the
County level. She congratulated and welcomed our new State House Rep Kelly Breen who has a great
work ethic and she will make South Lyon a priority. She congratulated the South Lyon Community
School Board members Dan Schwegler and Anthony Abbate for being re-elected. She then welcomed
Martin Leftwich to the school board, and welcomed back to everym}[e;in Lyon Township who kept their
office. She then congratulated Haley Stevens on being re—elected%/s/ﬁen gave a shout out to Clerk
Deaton, the office staff and the Election Inspectors, the South Lyon Police Department. She stated people
were nervous about this Election and she told them that our { i 'f/’/// /d do a great job and she is really
glad to see she was right, our Election Day was orgamzf}d c j;n and 't /e@ taff stayed friendly and smiling.
Councilmember Dilg stated Halloween was great, peo 3//% ere energetlc%d ositive, responsible and it
was great seeing the Police out checking on every9 /

he then congratulat ﬁ’the Lyon Task Force for
the award. She stated working with Lyon Townsh }Jas something she Wante/ét%do since she has been
on Council and we need to give an extra shout out to"’];/ Archer th/ Lyon Townéﬁi DA Director. She
has worked very hard to ensure all the businesses are kept ﬁ to d/- / he then thanf({;fjg uncilmember
e Nt
Kennedy for going to so many of the b deir %/ses and organ making everyon eel included.
a0 ///’//’/,
She then stated she was invited to a smal /} apprecmtlo
they welcomed Governor Whitmer to Sout/h// /

great to see the Witches Hat be recogmzed /////’

_
Councilmember Walto %ﬁ”é sFall lea /c%/ / /// g and according to the website,

//’/ D k/’// sinto De %/e//r/s/,/h ///////////

\

\\\\\\

it looks like we are allo%} o for plC remmded everyone of the event on

Veterans Day at the Vete{/ ﬁ/’”é em(?n town. It 1s et for 11: 11 on Veteran’s Day.

///, /
ilm ’////// 1 he / 'ﬁ/// // ght along and its very exciting. There 15 a lot
f tufﬁ, / /// {L/ // /// ,// /

ng o ///) ‘rh at has to take place before you can start
makmg gs Iook good ;/ ated 1@%&1/stomshmg hiow quick the water tank has been put together and
for them t /nrake all the comp % nénts on fé’/ls staggeringly cool. He has enjoyed watching that and we

kK Ui f//
will have anot‘r,/// b1g set that “{{/} payin /@ or with our new rates. It gives us the flexibility to know
that our water sy{// s redun dancy where we don’t have to be concerned about things failing and not

being able to have the}a city tha%ve need to provide for our residents and businesses. He then
reminded everyone of thc;// }femonal he hopes evervone is responsible and it is always a
meaningful event and its ’l‘gﬁ /%‘ to see the people that have provided us the freedoms that we enjoy.
He then stated it is terrific to Sg,/ wanis putting the trees back in McHattie Park and he is happy about
that. Councilmember Kivell stated Clerk Deaton and her staff took a herculean effort without even
blinking and he is sure they were tired as could be, but they did what they needed to do. He is proud of
all of them.

Councilmember Richards stated Larry Ledbetter who is the number one leader of the Historical group is
out and about and doing well after his surgery. This weekend he oversaw the improvements at the Depot,
the painting, the lighting, new lattice, gardens are wrapped up and lights that were installed in the
windows. There was an Eagle Scout project done that stained the deck. He stated the DPW will be
installing the Christmas Tree. Councilmember Richards stated the British Swim Club has a different

11-9-20



colored concrete and they confirmed dye was added to the concrete, he tried to find out who ordered it,
but no one got back to him. He then stated 825 Lake Street is moving along, but someone should remind
him there should be sidewalks to 10 Mile. He then stated the Marathon gas station has had roof repair,
and seal coating done. He stated the VFW is on the go for the Memorial Event this Wednesday. The
permits were filed and they are having the event.

Councilmember Kennedy stated the risk of being a bit redundant he wants to again recognize the efforts
of our City staff, our volunteer poll workers, the South Lyon Police Department and our Department of
Public Works for their efforts during the recent election. It truly was a team effort to ensure that
everything went smoothly, so once again, thanks to everyone who h}/}ged make that possible.

He then stated he has had a couple of DPW crew members contac% fo remind residents to help the

DPW help you. As you rake your leaves to the street to be oolle/@/{//a,émember to keep them tight to the
curb so the crews can effectively vacuum them. If they blOM :_%//%che middle of the street, please get a
rake or broom and pull them back fo the curb. He then s//t//a {@f{{ plea%égf%?fz}rlember to keep all branches and

2 i,
other materials out of the leaf piles, they will clog ment. And /f/{{fé%%/}fj do not cover the storm

drains in the street with your leaves. The drains need fobe open and clear 1t v{,/(}tder to remove rain water

from the street. /////) .

//%/
Mayor Pelchat stated thanked the City staff for the incré i@}

r
4

//%//ﬁ

Eledlion’ the Police, inspiéotors, staff. He

> or v b
stated South Lyon East made a great e%%f’%agamst Chelsea’t] ::,%001, but fell a bit s/{ﬁ//g/f't The Cougars
took the lead with 4 minutes left, but wasn t‘abléto hang onto *1,;‘,;.?%}}[&: then stated South Iyon High will
advance to play North Farmington on Fridays, Helstated the holi ay<ywill be here before we know it, but
he wants to remind everyone it is tough and ‘¢ need @2,@//7 nod 1o eve ryone.

L
"

ADJOURNMENT //////f/////////////ﬁ //////

CM 11-11-20 MOTION 10O AJOURN?///,
o

&>

RS

Motion by Kenifé/% ?jx{ésupportg /y Walton %
Motion to adjourn atfé/f/SS Pl %// , ////
S o G INANIMOUSLY

//// U E

.
N
o /
Dan Pelchat, Mayor ////////,,//%//;// ' Lisa Deaton, City Clerk
.

11-5-20



AGENDA NOTE

Consent Agenda 1
MEETING DATE: November 23, 2020
PERSON PLACING ITEM ON AGENDA: City Manager
AGENDA TOPIC: ZBA Board Appointment

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: We currently have an opening on the ZBA board for one
alternate member. Please see attached Candidate Questionnaire for Alex Hanson and his
interest in serving on Zoning Board of Appeals.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Candidate
Questionnaire from Alex Hanson for the ZBA Alternate Member.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve or not approve the nomination by the
Mayor to appoint Alex Hanson for the ZBA Alternate Member.

SUGGESTED MOTION: Motion by , supported by

to approve Mayor Dan Pelchat’s nomination of Alex Hanson
for the ZBA Alternate Member.




CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE

RECEIVED

NOV -5 2020

CITY OF 8QUTH LYON
OFFICE OF TREASURER

The City of South Lyon wishes to thank you for vour interest in serving as a Volunteer Citizen
Representative on a Board, Commission or Committee. Your Candidate Questionnaire will be
kept on file and entered for conslderation for posted openings on any Board, Comimlission or
Committee that you expressed an interest in for a period of two years. Please feel free to
submit an updated Candidate Questionnaire to the City Clerk at any time.

Please be advised that the information contained in this Questionnaire is not confidential, and
will be reviewed by the Mayor, City Council and other appropriate personnel as vacancies or
openings occur on the various Boards, Commissions and Committees. This Candidate
Questionnaire may also be Included in any City Council Meeting Packet which is published and
made avallable for public inspection in print and on the Internet. Your address, phone numbers

and email will not be published, even in the Meeting Packet.

Please be advised that even though you may submit an application to serve on a Board,
Commission or Comntittee, it does not guarantee that you will be appomted to that-Board,
Commission or Committee.

BOARDS/COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES ON WHICH YOU WANT TO SERVE (please check up to

five applicable boxes; see attachment for descriptions):

Appointed by Mavor-Confirmed by City Council

X
X

|

Planning Commission

Zoning Board of Appeals

Cabté Commission

Cultural Arts Commission

Historical Commission

Parks and Recreation Commission
Downtown Development Authority
Housing Commission

Board of Ethics



NAME A/QX /44:156’;1 CITY OF SOUTH LYON RESIDENT FOR _C YEARS ( 2 Mo-m‘Ls)

aooress_ SNV np_ Y8778

PHONE (home} _g_ PHONE {business or cell) ____
evaiL_ S

OCCUPATION:  Braacl. Mam;ﬂr“

ARE YOU A CITIZEN OF THE UNITED STATES? _X__YES NO
IS ANY MEMBER OF YOUR FAMILY ON ANOTHER BOARD OR COMMISSION? YEs_X NO
IFSO,WHO? _ N/A

INTERESTS/REASONS/QUALIFICATIONS: {Resume may be attached)

foame _and au_rer" lefHe, Afbocted .

BGARDS[C@MM!SS!GNS/COMMITTEES ON WHICH YOU HAVE SERVED (LIST MUNICIPALITIES
AND DATES):
Meméer A/owe.j/ ;omn..l‘é -3 Zonl 4, EMJ of &92a[$‘ ‘:J:;WM){ 2018 - S@ﬁé{r ,2020

ELECTIVE OFFICES THAT YOU HAVE HELD;

Améer Cuks  Abmeosners f{S‘J‘nc:‘u{un / Treasurer ang Plin res-&?-m‘lz')
OTHER ORGANIZATIONS: {Ex. Homeowners Assocsatmn Volunteer Groups, PTA, atc...}
Am&er Clds /émeowner: As.roc fod o S?,o#—ember 20/6 - -%o#méer 2049.
/%méfr' o‘f-\ #\n &AES /IM&. aAaméef— of dﬂfﬁt

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

Flease See Resyme,

Signature %// Lo Date / / S~ 2020




Alexander M. Hansen
St
Swuth Lyon, M1 48178

ol ——
o

Zoning Board
335 5. Warren St.
South Lyon, MI 48178

To Whom It May Concern,

I am interested in being considered for a seat on the Zoning Board. I am confident that
I'am qualified and would be an asset to the South Lyon Community.

A quick summary of my qualifications:

I have a Bachelor’s of Fine Arts from Northern Michigan University. [ also have a
Masters of Business Administration specializing in Finance from Davenport
University. Within my graduate studies in Business Finance, I excelled in my
coursework that I feel would benefit our local government, specifically corporate
finance and management.

Throughout my life [ have been extremely active in my community. Prior to my
college years, I excelled as a 4-H leader and as a Boy Scout. Through my volunteerism
in scouting, | earned by Eagle Scout rank. During my undergraduate studies, I was
active in student government, Make a Difference Day, the local radio station, Housing
and Residence Life, and the U.P. Children’s Museum. Due to my involvement in local
organizations, I earned the Superior Edge Award for exceeding 400 hours of
community service. '

Recently, I served for nearly three years on the Howell Township Zoning Board of
Appeals as a member of the board. On the ZBA, we dealt with a variety of requests
from residents ranging from variance interpretations to appeals. When I moved to
South Lyon in September 2020, I had to resign from the board. Prior to serving on the
ZBA for Howell Township, | served as a member of the Amber Oaks Community Home
Owner’s Association. For over a year, | served as the Treasurer before being
appointed as the President of the board.

I would like to thank you in advance for taking time to consider me for this
appointment with the City of South Lyon, and [ look forward to hearing from you.

Respectfully,

Alexander M. Hansen



Alexander M. Hansen
SR
T,
South Lyon, MI 48178

Work Experience

COMMUNITY FINANCIAL CREDIT UNION
(2014 - Present) Branch Manager, Assistant Branch Manager, Financial Sales Rep.
e Effectively utilizes sales and financial coaching resources.
Handles member escalations and concerns.
Coaches team members concerning policy and products.
Leads daily meetings dealing with policy changes, announcements, sales, or training.
Develops and maintains detailed relationships and strategies for each member.
¢ Complies with all credit union policies, procedures, and regulations.
e Represents Community Financial at local networking events.

PNC BANK
(2007 - 2014) Senior Coach, Business Specialist, Business Banking Consultant

e Managed relationships and a book of business.
Trained and coached a call center team as a Senior Coach.
Led daily team meetings addressing policy changes, announcements, sales or training.
Provided assistance to business clients with deposit and loan relationships.
Experienced in commercial loan products, documents, and procedures.
Understanding of business and personal credit-card accounts. - -
Demonstrated knowledge of lending products and loan application practices.
Represented PNC at the Chamber of Commerce through networking events.

& °© o

® @ © @

Achievements

¢ Emerging Leaders Program Graduate ¢ Member, Howell Township Zoning Board of Appeals
+ Top Branch Loan Sales 2015 ¢ Elite Financial Coach ¢ Morningstar Certified ® Ambassador,
Plymouth Community Chamber of Commerce ¢ Grow Up Great Volunteer ¢« Community Financial
Employees® & Employees® Children’s Scholarship Recipient ¢ Dean’s List President, Amber Qaks
Homeowners Association ¢ Community Service Platinum Award ¢ Spirit of Diversity Award for
work coordinating and securing financing for Edward James Olmos as Diversity Conference Keynote
Speaker ¢ Superior Edge Award for 400+ hours of Community Service
¢ Volunteer at Kalamazoo Community Access Center ¢ 2011 Circle of Excellence Recipient
¢ Habitat for Humanity Velunteer ¢ Charles C. Spooner Grant Recipient ¢ Eagle Scout
¢ Official Selection, W. Michigan Area Art Show ¢ 2006 TLC Student Award
¢ Resident Advisor, Northern Michigan University ¢

. Education
DAVENPORT UNIVERSITY
Masters of Business Administration - Finance Concentration
WEBSTER UNIVERSITY

NORTHERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Bachelors of Fine Arts - Digital Cinema Major, Media Production Minor



AGENDA NOTE

New Business # -7
MEETING DATE: November 23, 2020
PERSON PLACING ITEM ON AGENDA: City Manager
AGENDA TOPIC: MERS Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: MERS of Michigan will be at our next meeting to give a
presentation on the most recent Actuarial Report. Additionally, at this meeting we will
need to approve the Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum for each of
our working groups. A representative from MERS will be at the meeting to answer any
questions you may have on the Report or the Agreements.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Defined Benefit
Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum for each of our working groups.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve or not approve the Defined Benefit
Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum for each of our working groups.

SUGGESTED MOTION: Motion by , supported by
to approve Defined Benefit Plan Adoption
Agreement Addendum for each of our working groups.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CF0CS-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEQ

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum @ MEI{S

Municipal Employees’ Refirement System
The employer, a participating municipality or court within the state of Michigan, hereby agrees to adopt
and administer the MERS Defined Benefit (DB) Plan provided by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement

System of Michigan, as authorized by 1996 PA 220, in accordance with MERS Plan Document, as both
may be amended, subject to the terms and conditions herein.

1134 Municipal Way Lansing, M| 48917 | 800.767.MERS (8377) | Fax 517.703.9711

|. Effective Date

The effective date shall be the first day of January, 2021.

Il. Employer name _South Lyon, City of

Municipality number 631501
This is an amendment of the existing Adoption Agreement for the MERS Defined Benefit.

Any changes to plan provisions apply to employees in the division on the effective date, as well as to
new hires ongoing. Definitions will apply for all service accrued after the effective date.

Division number ©3150101

Division name on file with MERS AFSME

lll. Plan Eligibility

Only those employees eligible for MERS membership may participate in the MERS Defined Benefit. If
an employee classification is included in the plan, then employees that meet this definition will recaive
service credit if they work the required number of hours to meet the service credit gualification defined
below. All eligible employees must be reported to MERS.

Using your Division Name above, expand on the employee classifications that are eligible to
participate in MERS. For example, if Division is “General,” please insert specific classifications that are
eligible for MERS such as “Clerical Staff,” “Elected Officials,” “Library Director,” etc.:

Employee classification contains public safety employees: Yes No

Public safety employees include: law enforcement, parole and probation officers, employees
responsible for emergency response (911 dispatch, fire service, paramedics, etc.), public works,
and other skilled support personnel {equipment operators, etc.).

DBB-000 (version 2020-08-10)

Page 1 of 6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CFQCI-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBED

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of DV: 63150101

If you elect to include a special classification (chart below), then the employee will be required to meet the
Service Credit Qualification as defined under section 1V (Provisions) in order to earn a month of service.
Excluded classification will require additional information below.

To further define eligibility (select all that apply):

Not

.Empluyee Classification 1 Employed

Temporary Employees: Those who will work for the municipality fewerthan [gl
months in total.

Part-Time Employees: Those who regularly work fewer than per @
Se ; i icipali 2 .

> ns:sc:mal Empl?oyees Those Wgr?l ;.w” work for the municipality v
Voter-Elected Officials
Appointed Officials: An official appointed to a voter-elected office.
Contract Employees

Probationary Periods (select one):

Service will begin after the probationary period has been satisfied. Probationary periods are allowed in
one-month increments, no longer than 12 months. During this probationary period, the employer will
not report or provide service,

The probationary period will be month{s).

Comments:

Service will begin with the employee’s date of hire (no Probationary Period). Effective with the date of
hire, wages paid and any associated contributions must be submitted to MERS.

-

DB-0CQ (version 2020-08-10} PageVVZ of 6




DecuSign Envelope ID: 2C8CFGC9-68CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBED

Deflned Beneflt Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of DV: 63150101

IV. Provisions
1. Service Credit Qualification

To clarify how eligible employses earn service credit, please indicate how many hours per month an
eligible employee needs to work. For example, if you require 10 eight-hour days, this would be 80 hours
per month. If an *hour per day’ has been defined (like ten 7-hour days), electing 70 hours will be required.
Employees must meet the definition of Plan Eligibility in order to earn service credit under the plan.

To receive one month of service credit, an employee shall work (or be paid for as if working)
X _lgb hours in a month.

2. Leaves of Absence

Indicate by checking the boxes below, whether the potential for service credit will be allowed if an
eligible employee is on one of the following types of leave, regardless of meetmg the service credit
qualification criteria.

Regardless whether an eligible employee is awarded service credit while on the selected type(s) of leave:
* MERS will skip over these months when determining the FAC amount for benefit calculations.
¢ Third-party wages are not reported for leaves of absence.

* Employers are not required to remit employer contributions based on leaves of absence when
no wages are paid by the employer. However, an employer may submit additional voluntary
contributions for the period of the leave in an amount determined by the employer.

* For contributory divisions, employee contributions are required for service credit to be retained.
Employee contributions will be collected based on the Service Credit Qualification. Employers will
calculate employee contributions due using the employee’s current hourly rate {prior to leave). For
example if 120 hours is required for service credit, then employee contributions shall be equal to
120 hours times the employee’s hourly rate. Employees have three times the length of leave, to a
maximum of five years, to pay required employee contributions. Leaves of absence are required
to be reported to MERS, including the employee'’s start and end date per month, along with the
employee’s hourly rate.

Typeof Leave N | Service Credit |  Service Credit
e : ' Granted Excluded

Short- and Long-Term Disabhility :

Workers’ Compensation @ @

Unpaid Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) O

Other: O O

For example, sick and accident, administrative, educational, sabhatical, etc. )

Other 2: @) 3

Additional leave types as above

Leaves of absence due to military service are governed by the Federal Uniformed Services Employment
and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA), IRC 414(u), effective January 1, 2007, IRC 401{a)}(37).

DB-000 (versicn 2020-09-10) Page 3 of 6



DeocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CFOCS-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DREQ

Deﬂned Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of

3. Definition of Compensation

DIv: 63150101

The Definition of Compensation is used to calculate a participant’s final average compensation and is
used in determining both employer and employee contributions. Wages paid to employees, calculated

using the elected definition, must be reported to MERS.

Select your Definition of Compensation here. If you
choose to customlze your definition; skip this table
3 and proceed to page 5,

Types:of_ Con_jlpens_ation

Base Wages

-
Box 1 Waes

-

Gross Wages

Regular Wages
Salary or hourly wage X hours
PTO used {sick, vacation, personal, bereavement, holiday leave, or unclassified)
On-call pay

All:Regular Wages
included

Al Regular Wages-

included

Al RegularWages '
mcluded

Other Wages
Shift differentials
‘Overtime
Beverancs issued over fime (weekly/hi-weekly)

Excluded

All:Other Wages -
included .

All-0ther Wages

© | included .

Lump Sum Payments
PTO cash-out
Lengevity
Bonuses
Marit pay
Job certifications
Educational degrees
Moving expenses
Sick payouts
Severance (if issued as [ump sum)

Excluded

Alllump-Sum .. -
Payments-included. -.

AllLump Surm
Paymens included .

Taxable Payments
Travel fhrough a non-accountahle plan (.. milsage not tracked for reimbursement)
Prizes, gift cards
Personal use of a company car
Car allowance

Excluded

All Taxable

‘Payments included .

| Al Taxable ‘
‘Payments included -

Reimbursement of Nontaxable Expenses {as defined by the IRS)
Gun, tools, eguipment, uniform
Phane
Fitness
Mileage reimbursement
Travel through an accountable plan (| 8. tracking mileage far reimbursement)

Excluded

Excluded

Excluded

Types of Deferra!s

Elective Delerrafs of Employee Premiums/Contributions
457 employee and emplayer centributions
125 cafeteria plan, FSAs and HSAs
[RA contribufions

AllEleetive -

Deferrals includied

Excluded

AH Elec’(lve Deferrals

_|nc|uded :

Types:of Benefits

Nontaxable Fringe Benefits of Employees
Health plan, dental, vision benefits
Workars compensation premiums
Short- or Long-term disability premiums
Group term or whole life insurance < $50,000

A!I 'Noqitaxab‘le
Fringe Banefits.
includad.

Fxcluded

Al Nontaxable =
Fringe Benefits -
included ’

Mandatory Contributions
Defined Benefit emplayee contributions
MERS Health Care Savings Frogram employee contributions

All Mandatory
Contributions
inchuded-

Excluded

All Mandatory
Comiributions
included

Taxable Fringe Benefits
Clothing reimbursement
Stipends for health insurance opt out payments
Group term life isurance > $50,000

Excluded

Excluded

All Taxable Fringe
Benefits included

Other Benefits / Lump Sum Payments
Workers compensation seitlement payments

Excluded

Excluded

All Othiar Lump Sum
Benefits Included

DB-000 (version 2020-09-10)

Page 4 of 6




DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CFOCY-89CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEG

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of Div: 63150101
SKIP THIS TABLE if you selected one of the standard definitions of compensation on page 4,

Compensatlon You will be responsmle for additional repomng detalls to track custom deflm’uons
Types: of Compensatlon ' ‘

Regular Wages
Salary or hourly wage X heurs g1 On-call pay

Other:

PTO used {sick, vacation, personal, bereavement, holiday leave, or unclassifiad)

Other Wages apply: YES ND
@ shitt ditferentials

Overtime
Lump Sum Payments apply: YES@Y NO[C]
PTO cash-out

Severance issued over time (weekly/bi-weekly}
Gther:

a4 |[Oel

Educational degrees

Langevity Moving expenses

D Bonuses Sick payouts

Merit pay Severance (if issued as lump sum)
Job certifications Gther:

-

axable Payments apply: YES@ NO
Travel through a non-acceuntable plan {i.e. mileage not tracked for reimbursement

Car allowance

Gther:

Prizes, gift cards

[N Iy Y 0 [ 1

100

Personal use of a company car

Reimbursement of Nontaxable Expenses {as defined by the IRS) apply: YES@ ND.
D Gun, tools, equipment, uniform Mileage reimbursement
D Phone Travel through an accountable plan (L&, tracking mileage for reimbursement)
D Fitness Other;
Types of Deferrals e L

Elective Deferrals of Empluyee Premiwms/Contributiens apply: YES. NO@

457 employee and employer contributions IRA contributions

other: 45 7 E 01.,0‘4@ Cam'msumub

125 cafeteria plan FSAs and HSAs

Om ,;-'DDD

Types of Benefrts
Nontaxahle Fringe Benefits of Employees apply: YES@ Nog
Health plan, dental, vision benefits

D Waorkers compensation premiums
D Short- or Long-term disability premiums

Mandatory Contributions apply: YES@ NO
Defined Benefit employee contributions

Group term or whole life insurance < $50,000
Other:

D MERS Health Care Savings Program employee centributions

Taxable Fringe Benefits apply: YES[C] No[@]
Clothing reimbursement

Other:

Group term life insurance > $50,000
Other;

D Stipends far health insurance opt out payments

Other Benefits / Lump Sum Payments apply: YES ND
Workers compensation settlement payments

I IR | N

Other;

DB-00C {version 2020-09-10) Page 5 of 6




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 2C6CF0C9-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DEEQ

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME:South Lyon, City of DV:63150101

V. Execution:
Authorized Designee of Governing Body of Municipality or Chief Judge of Court

This foregoing Addendum is hereby approved by City of South Lyon

at a Board Meeting which took place on:

(mm/ddfyyyy)

Authorized Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

(" I understand that approved board minutes are required to complete this request.

Board minutes should be sent to: DataCollectionProject@mersofmich.com

DB-000 {version 2020-09-10) . PageB Of 6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CF0C9-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBED

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum ﬁ ME%

Municipal Employees’ Retirement System

A _

The employer, a participating municipality or court within the state of Michigan, hereby agrees to adopt
and administer the MERS Defined Benefit (DB) Plan provided by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement

System of Michigan, as authorized by 1996 PA 220, in accordance with MERS Plan Document, as both
may be amended, subject to the terms and conditions herein.

e

1134 Municipal Way Lansing, Ml 48917 | 800.767.MERS (6377) | Fax 517.703.9711

|. Effective Date

The effective date shall be the first day of January, 2021.

Il. Employer name _South Lyon, City of

Municipality number 631501
This is anh amendment of the existing Adoption Agreement for the MERS Defined Benefit.

Any changes to plan provisions apply to employees in the division on the effective date, as well as to
new hires ongoing. Definitions will apply for all service accrued after the effective date.

Division number 63150102

Division name on file with MERS Pol/Fire

I1l. Plan Eligibility

Only those employees eligible for MERS membership may participate in the MERS Defined Benefit. If
an employee classification is included in the plan, then employees that meet this definition will receive
service credit if they work the required number of hours to meet the service credit qualification defined
below. All eligible employees must be reported to MERS.

Using your Division Name above, expand on the employee classifications that are eligible to
participate in MERS. For example, if Division is “General,” please insert specific classifications that are
eligible for MERS such as “Clerical Staff,” “Elected Officials,” “Library Director,” etc.:

Employee classification contains public safety employees: |§| Yes No

Public safety employees include: law enforcement, parole and probation officers, employees
responsible for emergency response (911 dispatch, fire service, paramedics, etc.), public works,
and other skilled support personnel {equipment operators, stc.).

R

L neuupenars i
DB-000 {version 2020-08-10) Page 1 of 6




DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CF0C9-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBED

Defmed Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of DV: 63150102

If you elect to include a special classification (chart below), then the employee will be required to meet the
Service Credit Qualification as defined under section IV (Provisions} in order to earn a month of service.
Excluded classification will require additional information below.

To further define eligibility (select all that apply):

Not

Employee Classification | . . '""'“ded Excluded. | Employed

Temporary Employees: Those who will work for the rnumcnpality fewerthan
months in total.

Part-Time Employees: Those who regularly work fewer than per

Seasonal Employees: Those who will work for the municipality
from to_ only.

Voter-Elected Officials
Appointed Officials: An official appoinied to a voter-elected office.

s o] i) -

|
sEe § s

Contract Employees

Probationary Periods (select one):

Service will begin after the probationary period has been satisfied. Probationary periods are allowed in
one-month increments, no longer than 12 months. During this probationary period, the employer will
not report or provide service.

The probationary period will be month(s).
Comments:

Service will begin with the employee’s date of hire (no Probationary Period). Effective with the date of
hire, wages paid and any associated contributions must be submitted to MERS.

DB-000 {version 2020-03-10) Page éof 6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CFOCS-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBED

Defined

R,

Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

i

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of DWV: 63150102
IV. Provisions

1. Service Credit Qualification

To clarify how eligible employees earn service credit, please indicate how many hours per month an
eligible employee needs to work. For example, if you require 10 eight-hour days, this would be 80 hours
per month. If an *hour per day’ has been defined (like ten 7-hour days}, electing 70 hours will be required.
Employees must meet the definition of Plan Eligibility in order to earn service credit under the plan.

To receive one month of service credit, an employee shall work (or be paid for as if working)
! 60 hours in a month.

2. Leaves of Absence

Indicate by checking the boxes below, whether the potential for service credit will be allowed if an
eligible employee is on one of the following types of leave, regardless of meeting the service credit
qualification criteria.

Regardless whether an eligible employee is awarded service credit while on the selected type(s) of leave:
* MERS will skip over these months when determining the FAC amount for benefit calculations.
* Third-party wages are not reported for leaves of absence.

* Employers are not required to remit employer contributions based on leaves of absence when
no wages are paid by the employer. However, an employer may submit additional voluntary
contributions for the period of the leave in an amount determined by the employer.

* For contributory divisions, employee contributions are required for service credit to be retained.
Employee contributions will be collected based on the Service Credit Qualification. Employers will
calculate employee contributions due using the employee’s current hourly rate (prior to leave). For
example if 120 hours is required for service credit, then employee contributions shall be equal to
120 hours times the employee’s hourly rate. Employees have three times the length of leave, to a
maximum of five years, to pay required employee contributions. Leaves of absence are required
to be reported to MERS, including the employee’s start and end date per month, along with the
employee’s hourly rate.

Type of Leave I ' . Service Credit Service Credit
[ Granted | Exciuded
Short- and Long-Term Disability '
Workers’ Compensation
Unpaid Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

Other: ¥
For example, sick and accident, administrative, educational, sabbatical, eic.
Other 2:

Additional leave types as above

Leaves of absence due to military service are governed by the Federal Uniformed Services Employment
and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA}, IRC 414(u), effective January 1, 2007, IRC 401(a)(37).

DB-000 (varsion 2020-09-10) Page 3of 6



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 2C6CFOCS-89CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD 1DBED

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of

3. Definition of Compensation

Div: 63150102

The Definition of Compensation is used to calculate a participant’s final average compensation and is
used in determining both employer and employee contributions. Wages paid to employees, calculated

using the elected definition, must be reported to MERS.

choose to customize your definition, skip this table

Select your Definition of Compensation here. If you - -

: ',". 5 D .
-and proceed to page 5. 2 & -
e . . - Base Wages Box1Wages Gross Wages
Types of Compensation R O | o

Regutar Wages All Regular Wages -} AllRegular Wages | Al RegudarWages
Salary or hourly wage X heurs incluged - Fincluded - | included
PTO used (sick, vacation, personal, bereavement, holiday leave, or unclassified) -

On-call pay . o . . ‘

Other Wages Excluded Al-ptherWages - -] AlkOther Wages*. .
Shift differentials included- . Jincluded, .
Overtime o : R
Severance issued over time (weekly/bi-weekly) ) = B =

Lump Sum Payments Excluded Allkump-Sum - - Al-LumpSum:~ -
PTQ cash-out Fayments Included: - | Paymentsincluded
Longevily o S -
Bonuses
Merit pay
Job certifications
Educational degrees
Moving expenses
Sick payouts
Severance (if issued as lump sum) C . e

Taxahle Payments Extluded Al Taxable o Al Taxable :
Trave] through a non-accountable plan {i.e. mileage not tracked for reimbursement) Payments included ¥ -Paymentsincluded
Prizes, gift cards P B
Personal use of a company car
Car allowance

Reimbursement of Nontaxable Expenses (as defined by the IRS) Excluded Excluded Excluded
Gur, tools, equipment, uniform
Fhone
Fitness
Mileage reimbursement
‘Travel through an accountable plan (i.e. tracking mileage for reimbursement)

Types of Deferrals _ ' o | R

Elective Deferrals of Employee Premiums/Gontributions All Elective’ Bxcluded All E'l_ecﬁ\;'e'lj'eferraJs
457 employee and employer contributions Deferrals included: included . -+
125 cafeteria plan, FSAs and HSAs LT ST e
IRA centributions

Types of Benefits - R AT

Nontaxable Fringe Benefils of Employees Al Nontaxable *. “. ] Excluded Al Nonfakabls:
Health plan, dentzl, vision benefits Fringe Banefits” - Fringe Benefits
Workars compensation premiums Included . included
Short- or Long-term disability premiums - ’

Group term or whole life insurance < $50,000 oo _

Mandatory Contributions All' Maridatory . Excluded AllMandatory
Defined Banefit employee contributions Contributions Contributions -
MERS Health Care Savings Program employee contributions included included

Taxable Fringe Benefits Excluded Excluded All Taxdble. Fringe )
Clothing reimbursement Benefits included
Stipends for health insurance opt cut payments : i
Group term life insurance > $50,000 L )

Gther Benefits / Lurnp Sum Payments Excluded Excluded All Other'Lump Sum
Workers compensation settiement payments Bengfits included

DB-000 {version 2020-08-10}

oy
Page 4 of 6



DocuSign Envelope [D: 2C6CF0C9-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEG

Defmed Beneflt Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYERNAME: South Lyon, City of DV: 63150102
SKIP THIS TABLE if you selected one of the standard definitions of compensation on page 4.

cUSTOM If you choose this optlon you. must select boxes in each section you. would like to include in your Deﬂmtlon of
Compensation. You will be respons:hle for additional reportlng detalls fo track custom deflmtlons

Types of Compensatlon

Regular Wages
Salary ar hourly wage X hours On-call pay

PTO used {sick, vacation, persanal, bereavement, holiday leave, or unclassified) D Other:

Other Wages apply: YES NO
Shift differenfials

Overtime

Lump Sum Payments apply: YES NO
PTO cash-out

Severance issued over time {weekly/hi-weekly)

Other:

Educational degrees

Longevity Moving expenses

D Bonuses Sick payouts

Merit pay Severance {if issued as lump sum)
Job ceriifications Other:

=

axable Payments apply: YES NU

Travel through a non-accountable plan (i.e. mileage not tracked for refmbursement}
Prizes, gift cards Car allowance

Otier:

00 |0000m (00

a4

Personal use of & company car

eimbursement of Nontaxable Expenses (as defined by the IRS} apply: YES[C]  NO[@]
Gun, toals, equipment, uniform

Mileage reimbursement

Wl

Phone

|:I Fitness

Travel through an accountable plan {i.e. tracking mileage for reimbursement)

COther:
Types of Deferrals . : '
Elective Deferrals of Employee Premmmsl(:untrlhutmns apply YES Nn@
457 employee and employer contributions IRA contributiogns

s0 | |ooo®

. 125 cafeteria plan, FSAs and HS5As

other: 437 EMPLOYEE CoWTRBUNOA S
Types of Benefits ' ; i i

Nontaxable Fringe Benefits of Empluyees app]y YES@ NO.
Health plan, dental, vision benefits

D Warkers compensation premiums
D Short- or Long-term disability premiums

Mandatory Contributions apply: YES@] ND
Defined Benefit employee contributions

D MERS Health GCare Savings Pragram employee contributions

Taxable Fringe Benefits apply: YES{_| NO[]
Clothing reimbursement

Group term or whole life insurance < $50,000
Other:

Other:

Group term life insurance > $50,000
Other:

D Stipends for health insurance opt out payments

Other Benefits / Lump Sum Payments apply: YES ND@]
Workers compensation settlement payments

Other:

. ago 44

DB-000 (version 2020-09-10) Page 5 of 6



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 2C6CFQC9-69CE-4472-B072-462AEDD1DBEQ

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

R EoN o

LR

EMPLOYER NAME:South Lyon, city of Div:63150102

V. Execution:

Authorized Designee of Governing Body of Municipality or Chief Judge of Court

This foregoing Addendum is hereby approved by City of South Lyon

at a Board Meeting which took place on:

(m/ddAyyy)

Authorized Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

(" I understand that approved hoard minutes are required to complete this raquest.

Board minutes should be sent to: DatalollectionProject@Gmersofmich.com

DB-0G0 {version Page 6 of 6




DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CFOCS-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBED

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum @ ME]{S

Municipal Employees’ Retirement System

1134 Municipal Way Lansing, Ml 48917 | 800.767.MERS (6377) | Fax 517.703.9711

The employer, a participating municipality or court within the state of Michigan, hereby agrees to adopt
and administer the MERS Defined Benefit (DB} Plan provided by the Municipal Employees’' Retirement

System of Michigan, as authorized by 1996 PA 220, in accordance with MERS Plan Document, as both
may be amended, subject o the terms and conditions herein.

|. Effective Date

The effective date shall be the first day of January, 2021.

Municipality number 631501
This is an amendment of the existing Adoption Agreement for the MERS Defined Benefit.

Any changes to plan provisions apply to employees in the division on the effective date, as well as to
new hires ongoing. Definitions will apply for all service accrued after the effective date.

Division number 63150110

Division name on file with MERS Non Union

11I. Plan Eligibility

Only those employees eligible for MERS membership may participate in the MERS Defined Benefit, If
an employee classification is included in the plan, then employees that meet this definition will receive
service credit if they work the required number of hours to meet the service credit qualification defined
below. All eligible employees must be reported to MERS.

Using your Division Name abaove, expand on the employee classifications that are eligible to
participate in MERS. For example, if Division is “General,” please insert specific classifications that are
eligible for MERS such as “Clerical Staff,” “Elected Officials,” “Library Director,” etc.:

Employee classification contains public safety employees: @ Yes No

Public safety employees include: law enforcement, parole and probation officers, employees
responsible for emergency response (911 dispatch, fire service, paramedics, etc.), public works,
and other skilled support personnel {equipment operators, etc.).

L [eeenvewuooeee

DB-000 (version 2020-09-10)

.

Page 1 of 6




DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CF0C9-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEQ

o TE
LEEEE

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of biv: 63150110

If you elect to include a special classification (chart below), then the employee will be required to mest the
Service Credit Qualification as defined under section IV (Provisions) in order to earn a month of service.
Excluded classification will require additional information below.

To further define eligibility (select all that apply):

Not
i Employed

b
1
I
!

Employee Classification  Included | Excluded

Temporary Employees: Those who will work for the municipality fewer than g
months in total.

Part-Time Employees: Those who regularly work fewer than per el
Seasonal Employees: Those who will work for the municipality .

from to only.
Voter-Elected Officials Bl
Appointed Officials: An cofficial appointed to a voter-elected office.

Contract Employees

Probationary Periods {select one}):

Service will begin after the probationary period has been satisfied. Probationary periods are allowed in
one-month increments, no longer than 12 months. During this probationary period, the employer will
not report or provide service.

The probationary period will be month(s}.
Comments:

Service will begin with the employee’s date of hire {no Probationary Period). Effective with the date of
hire, wages paid and any associated contributions must be submitted to MERS.

DB-000 (version 2020-09-10) Page 2 of 6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CF0CY-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBED

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

I S T AL AR

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of b 63150110
IV. Provisions

1. Service Credit Qualification

To clarify how eligible employees earn service credit, please indicate how many hours per month an
eligible employee needs to work. For example, if you require 10 eight-hour days, this would be 80 hours
per month. If an *hour per day’ has been defined (like ten 7-hour days), electing 70 hours will be required.
Employees must meet the definition of Plan Eligibility in order to earn service credit under the plan.

To receive one month of service credit, an employee shall work {or be paid for as if working)
6 hours in a month.

2. Leaves of Absence

Indicate by checking the boxes below, whether the potential for service credit will be allowed if an
eligible employee is on one of the following types of leave, regardless of meeting the service credit
qualification criteria.

Regardless whether an eligible employee is awarded service credit while on the selected type(s) of leave:
* MERS will skip over these months when determining the FAG amount for benefit calculations.
* Third-party wages are not reported for leaves of ahsence.

* Employers are not required to remit employer contributions based on leaves of absence when
no wages are paid by the employer. However, an employer may submit additional voluntary
contributions for the period of the leave in an amount determined by the employer.

* For contributory divisions, employee contributions are required for service credit to be refained.
Employee contributions will be collected based on the Service Credit Qualification. Employers will
calculate employee contributions due using the employee’s current hourly rate {prior to leave). For
example if 120 hours is required for service credit, then employee contributions shall be equal to
120 hours times the employee’s hourly rate. Employees have three times the length of leave, to a
maximum of five years, to pay required employee contributions. Leaves of absence are required
to be reported to MERS, including the employee’s start and end date per month, along with the
employee’s hourly rate.

' Service Credit
Excladed

Type of Leave ' ' | Service Credit
Granted

Short- and Long-Term Bisability
Workers’ Compensation
Unpaid Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

Other: @ @

For example, sick and accident, administrative, educational, sabbatical, etc.

Other 2: @

Additional leave types as above

Leaves of absence due to military service are governed by the Federal Uniformed Services Employment
and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA), IRC 414(u), effective January 1, 2007, IRC 401(a)(37).

DB-000 (version 2020-09-10) Page 3 of 6



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 2C6CFOC9-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEQ

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of

3. Definition of Compensation

DIv: 63150110

The Definition of Compensation is used to calculate a participant’s final average compensation and is
used in determining both employer and employee contributions. Wages paid to employees, calculated

using the elected definition, must be reported to MERS.

choose to customize your definition, skip this table
~and proceed to page 5.

Select your Definition of Compensation here. If you -

Types of Gompensation

ase Wages

Box 1 Wages

#

Grss Wages

Regular Wages
Salary or hourly wage X hours
PTO used (sick, vacation, persanal, bereavement, holiday leave, or unclassified)
On-call pay

All:Regular Wages

included

Al Regular Wages-
§ included

AII Hegular Wagas
[ncluded )

Other Wages
Shift differentials
Overtime
Severance issued over time (weekly/bi-weekly)

Excluded

Al Other Wages: .

in‘c_h_J_ded‘ -

1 Al Othier Wages

ancluded . .

Lump Sum Payments
PT( cash-out
Longevity
Bonuses
Merit pay
Job ceitifications
Educations] degrees
Maving expenses
Sick payouts
Severance (if issued as lump sumy)

Excluded

Al Lump- Sum

{ Al Lumip Sum- -
Payments included: .

Paymerits inolutled

Taxahle Payments
Travel through a nen-acceuntable plan (i.e. mileage not fracked for reimbursement)
Prizes, gift cards
Personal use of a company car
Car allowance

Excluded

Al Taxahle
Payments included

Al Taxable -
Payments included

Reimbursement of Nontaxahle Expenses {as defined by ths IRS)
Gun, taols, equipment, uniform
Phone
Fitness
Mileage reirmbursement
Travel through an accountable plan {l.e. tracking mileage for reimbursement)

Excluded

Excluded

Excluded

Types of Deferrals

Elective Delerrals of Empluyee Premlumslcontnbutmns
457 employee and employer contribuilons
125 cafeteria plan, FSAs and HSAs
IRA contributions

All Elective .
Deferrals |nc|uded

Excluded

AI]'EIgctive.DefErr'als
Inctuded

Types of Benefits

Nnntaxahle Fringe Beneflis of Emptoyees
Health plan, dental, vision benefits
Workers compensation premiums
Short- or Long-term disability premiums
Group term or whele life insurance < $50,000

AllNontaxable
Fringe Benefits
included

| Exeluded

AlNontaxabls
Fringe Benefits
included

Mandatory Confributions
Defined Benefit smployes contributions
MERS Health Care Savings Program employee coniributions

AII'Mandatory .

Ceniributions
included

§ Excluded

All Mandatory
Contributicns
included

Taxable Fringe Benefits
Clothing reimbursement
Stipends for health insurance opt out payments
Group term life insurance > $50,000

Excluded

Excludad

All Takable Frmge
Beneflts included

Other Benefits / Lump Sum Payments
Workers compensation settlement paymenis

Excluded

Excluded

All Ctaer Lump Sum
Benefits included

DB-000 (version 2020-09-10)

Page 4‘"0.‘1’.6



DacuSign Envelope I1D: 2C6CF0C9-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEQ

Defmed Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of Div: 63150110
SKIP THIS TABLE if you selected one of the standard definitions of compensation on page 4.

&) CUSTOM: If you choose thls optlon 'you must select boxes in each sectuon you would like to mclude in your Definition of
Compensatlon You will be responsm]e for addltlonal repomng details to track custom defln}tions

Types of Gompensatlon

Regular Wages
j Salary or hourly wage X hours On-call pay

PTO used (sick, vacation, persenal, bereavement, holiday leave, or unclassified) Other:

Other Wages apply: YES NO@
@] shitt ditferentials

Overtime

Lumg Sum Payments apply: YES/@ No[O]
PTO cash-out

Severance issued over time (weekly/bi-weekly}
Other:

Educational degrees

Longevity Moving expenses

l:l Bonuses Sick payouts

@ Merit pay Severance {if issued as lump sum)
D Job certifications Other:

g

xable Payments apply: YES NO
Travel through a non-acceuntable ptan {i.e. mileage not tracked for reimbursementy
Prizes, gift cards Car allowance

Other:

Al

Personal use of a company car

N[ R T Y [ 0 o Y

eimbhursement of Nontaxable Expenses {as defined by the IRS) apply: YES. NO]EI

Gun, tools, equipment, uniform Mileage reimbursement

N

Phone

D Fitness

Travel threugh an accountable plan {i.e. tracking mileage far reimbursement)

Other:
Types of Deferrals ‘o '
Elective Deferrals of Employee Premlumslcnntrlhutmns apply: YES[E NO@
457 employee and employer contributions IRA coniributions

=0 DDD

. 125 cafeteria plan, FSAS and HSAS Other: HE T EMPLOYEE ool Qanss
Types of Benefits- ' : )
Nontaxable Fringe Benefits of Emplnyees apply YES@ ND.

Health plan, dental, vision benefits

D Workers compensation premiums
D Short- or Long-term disability premiums

Mandatory Gentributions apply: YES@ Nl)
Defined Benefit employee contributions

Group term or whole life insurance < $30,000
Other:

D MERS Health Care Savings Program employee contributions

Taxable Fringe Benefits apply: YES[C] No[@]
Clothing reimbursement

Other:

Group term life insurance > $50,000
Other.

D Stipends for health insurance opt out payments

Other Benefits / Lump Sum Payments apply: YES NU@
Warkers compensation settlemant payments

Other:

O O Qaa

DB-000 (version 2020-09-10) F’age 5of 6




DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CFIC9-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEQ

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

R e it

EMPLOYER NAME:South Lyon, City o‘F DIV:63150110

V., Execution:
Authorized Designee of Governing Body of Municipality or Chief Judge of Court

This foregoing Addendum is hereby approved by City of south Lyon

at a Board Meeting which took place on:

{mm/dd/yvywy)

Authorized Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

(" I understand that approved board minutes are required to complete this request.

Board minutes should be sent to: DPatatollectionProjectOmersofmich.com

. B-OOO (version Pageﬁ of 6




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 2C8CF0CY9-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD 1 DBED

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum ﬁ MERS

Municipul Employees’ Refirement System

1134 Municipal Way lLansing, M| 48917 | 800.767.MERS (6377) | Fax 517.703.9711

The employer, a participating municipality or court within the state of Michigan, hereby agrees to adopt
and administer the MERS Defined Benefit (DB) Plan provided by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement
System of Michigan, as authorized by 1996 PA 220, in accordance with MERS Plan Document, as both
may be amended, subject to the terms and conditions herein.

|. Effective Date

The effective date shall be the first day of January, 2021.

Il. Employer name South Lyon, City of

Municipality number 631501
This is an amendment of the existing Adoption Agreement for the MERS Defined Benefit.

Any changes to plan provisions apply to employees in the division on the effective date, as well as to
new hires ongoing. Definitions will apply for all service accrued after the effective date.

Division number 63150111

Division name on file with MERS Clerical

I1l. Plan Eligibility

Only those employees eligible for MERS membership may participate in the MERS Defined Benefit. If
an employee classification is included in the plan, then employees that meet this definition will receive
service credit if they work the required number of hours to meet the service credit qualification defined
below. All eligible employees must be reported to MERS.

Using your Division Name above, expand on the employee classifications that are eligible to
participate in MERS. For example, if Division is “General,” please insert specific classifications that are
eligible for MERS such as “Clerical Staff,” “Elected Officials,” “Library Director,” etc.:

Employee classification contains public safety employees: Yes No

Public safety employees include: law enforcement, parole and probation officers, employees
responsible for emergency response (911 dispatch, fire service, paramedics, etc.), public works,
and other skilled support personnel {equipment operators, etc.).

DB-000 {version 2020-09-10) Page 1 of 6



Docudign Envelope ID: 2C6CF0CO-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEQ

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

R TR TR

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of DIV: 63150111

if you elect to include a special classification (chart below), then the employee will be required to meet the
Service Credit Qualification as defined under seclion IV (Provisicns) in order to earn a month of service.
Excluded classification will require additional information below.

To further define eligibility (select all that apply):

Employee Classification ' Included Excluded | _ Ot

| Employed

T
0

Temporary Employees: Those wha will work for the municipality fewer than
months in total.

Part-Time Employees: Those who regularly work fewer than per

Seasonal Employees: Those who will work for the municipality
from o only.

Voter-Elected Officials
Appointed Officials: An official appointed to a voter-elected office.
Contract Employees

e iele B

I
]

Probationary Periods (select one):

Service will begin after the probationary period has been satisfied. Probationary periods are allowed in
one-month increments, no longer than 12 months. During this probationary period, the employer will
not report or provide service.

The probationary period will be month(s).
Comments:

Service will begin with the employee’s date of hire (no Probationary Period). Effective with the date of
hire, wages paid and any associated confributions must be submitted to MERS.

DB-000 {version 2020-09-1G) .Pé.ge 2 Of“6



BocuSign Envelope 1D: 2C6CFOC9-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEQ

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

AR e e B S S |

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of DV: 63150111
IV. Provisions

1. Service Credit Qualification

To clarify how eligible employees earn service credit, please indicate how many hours per month an
eligible employee needs to work. For example, if you require 10 eight-hour days, this would be 80 hours
per month. If an ‘hour per day’ has been defined (like ten 7-hour days), electing 70 hours will be required.
Employees must meet the definition of Plan Eligibility in order to earn service credit under the plan.

To receive one month of service credit, an employee shall work (or be paid for as if working)
{(OO hours in a month.

2. Leaves of Absence

Indicate by checking the boxes below, whether the potential for service credit will be allowed if an
eligible employee is on one of the following types of leave, regardless of meeting the service credit
gualification criteria.

Regardless whether an eligible employee is awarded service credit while on the selected type(s) of leave:
* MERS will skip over these months when determining the FAC amount for benefit calculations.
» Third-party wages are not reported for leaves of absence.

» Employers are not required to remit employer contributions based on leaves of absence when
no wages are paid by the employer. However, an employer may submit additional voluntary
contributions for the period of the leave in an amount determined by the employer.

* For confributory divisions, employee contributions are required for service credit to be retained.
Employee contributions will be collected based on the Service Credit Qualification. Employers will
calculate employee contributions due using the employee’s current hourly rate {prior to leave). For
example if 120 hours is required for service credit, then employee contributions shall be equal to
120 hours times the employee’s hourly rate. Employees have three times the length of leave, to a
maximum of five years, to pay required employee contributions. Leaves of absence are required
to be reported to MERS, including the employee’s start and end date per month, along with the
employee’s hourly rate.

'Type of Leave I ' ' ' B ' Service Credit | Service Credit
B e Granted Excluded

Short- and Long-Term Disahility

Workers’ Compensation

Unpaid Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

Other:

For example, sick and accident, administrative, educational, sabbatical, stc.

Other 2: ) i

Additional leave types as above

Leaves of absence due to military service are governed by the Federal Uniformed Services Employment
and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA), IRC 414(u), effective January 1, 2007, IRC 401(a)(37).

T

PR

DB-000 (version 2020-09-10) Page 3 of 6



DacuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CF0CY-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEQ

Def

TR

ined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of

3. Definition of Compensation

Div: 63150111

The Definition of Compensation is used to calculate a participant’s final average compensation and is
used in determining both employer and employee contributions. Wages paid to employees, calculated

using the elected definition, must be reported to MERS.

Select your Definition of Compensation-here. If you

and proceed to page 5.

choose to customize your:definition, skip this table

Types ﬁbf:' Compensa’iio’n '

Regutar Wages
Salary or hourly wage X hours
PT0 used (sick, vacation, personal, bereavement, holiday leave, or unclassified)
On-call pay

All-Regular Wages -

included

Al Regular Wages

} inchided

All Regular Wages

Other Wages
Shift differentials
Overtime
Severance issued over time (weekly/bi-waekly)

Excluded

Al:0ther Wages
Included

- L All-tther Wages

Lump Sum Payments
PTO cagh-out
{ ongevity
Bonuses
Merit pay
Job certifications
Educational degrees
Moving expenses
Sick payouts
Severance {if issued as lump sumj

Excluded

Al Lump-Sum-: 2=
Payments iricluded:

All Lump-Sum- .
Paymenis included

Taxable Payments
Travel through a non-accountable plan (i.e. mileage not tracked for reimbursement)
Prizes, gift cards
Personal use of a company car
Car allowance

Excluded

All Taxable:
'Payments_in'cluded

AllTaxable. -
'Payments included

Reimbursement of Nontaxable Expenses {as defined by the IRS)
Gun, tools, equipment, uniform
Phone
Filness
Miteage reimbursement
Teavel through an accountable plan {i.e. fracking mileage for reimbursement}

Excluded

Excluded

Types of Deferrals:

Elective Deferrals of Employee Premiums/Contributions
457 employee and emplayer contributions
125 cafeteria plan, FSAs and HSAs
IRA contributions

Al Elective

) Exgluded
Deterrals included .

All Elective:Deférrals

Types of Benefits

Nontaxable Fringe Benefits of Employees
Health plan, dental, vision benefits
Workers compensation premiums
Short- or Long-erm disahility premiums
Group term or whole life insurance < $50,000

All Nontaxable
Fringe Benefits
included -

.- | Excluded )

AltNontaxable:
Fringe Benefits

Mandatory Contributions
+ Defined Benefit employee centributions
MERS Health Care Savings Program employee confributions

All Mandatory
Contribiuticns
included

Excluded

All Mandatory
Contributlons

Taxable Fringe Benefits
Clothing reimbursement
Stipends for health insurance opt out payments
Group term [ife insurance > $50,000

Excluded

Excluded

All Taxable Fringe
Benefits included

Other Benefits / Lump Sum Payments
Workers compensatien setilement payments

Excluded

Excluded

Al Uui'er:L_ump Suin
Benefits included

DB-000 {version 2020-09-10)

Page 4 of 6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CFOC9-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEQ

Defmed Beneflt Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyoh, City of Div: 63150111
SKIP THIS TABLE if you selected one of the standard definitions of compensation on page 4.

. CUSTOM: If you chaose this option, you must select boxes in each. sectlon you would like'to mc[ude |n your Deﬂnmon of
Compensation. You will ba responszbie for additional repor‘ung detalls to track custem definitions.

Types of Compensation.

Regular Wages
j Salary or hourly wage X hours On-call pay

PTO used {sick, vacation, personal, bersavement, holiday leave, or unclassified) Other:

Other Wages apply: YES[@] No[O)]
Shift differentials

E Cvertime

Lump Sum Payments apply: YES@ NO
PTO cash-out

Severance issued ever time (weekly/bi-weekly)
Other:

Educaticnal degrees

Longavity Moving expenses

D Bonuses Sick payouts

IE Merit pay Severance (if issued as lumg sum}
D Job certifications Other:

Travel through a non-accountable plan (i.e. mileage not tracked for reimbursement)

]
D Prizes, gift cards
]

Personal use of a company car

Car allawancs

Other:

Reimbursement of Nontaxable Expenses (as defined by the IRS) apply: YES. NO|@|

D Gun, toals, equipment, uniform Mileage reimbursement

Travel through an acceuntable plan {i.e. tracking mileage for reimbursement)

Other:
Types of Deferrals . : : o
Elective Deferrals of Employee Premlumslcuntrlhunons apply: YES. NU.
457 employee and employer contributions 1RA contfributions

. 125 cafeteria plan, FSAs and HSAs

o j_i:n:n:l 00 |D000e |00 |08

Other: 57 EMPLINEE JpaiRBunion S

Types of Benefits

Nontaxable Fringe Benefits of Employees apply YES. NO@
Health plan, dental, vision benefits

D Workers compensation premiums

Graup term or whole life insurance < $50,000
D Short- er Long-term disability premiums

Other:
Mandatory Gontributions apply: YES@ ND
Defined Benefit employee contributions
[j MERS Health Care Savings Program emglayee contributions Other:

Taxable Fringe Benefits apply: YES|] NO[@®]

Clothing reimbursement Group term life insurance > $50,000

O aaa Qa4

D Stipends for health insurance opt out payments Other:
Other Benefits / Lump Sum Payments apply: YES ND
Workers compensation settlement payments QOther:

DB-C0G {version 2020-09-10} Page 5 Of 6




DocuSign Envelope ID: 2G8CF0CI9-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DEED

Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

R T T

RN ]

Defined
- EMPLOYER NAME:South Lyon, City of Dv:63150111

V. Execution:
Authorized Designee of Governing Body of Municipality or Chief Judge of Court

This foregoing Addendum is hereby approved by City of South Lyon

at a Board Meeting which took place on:

{mm/ddAvwyy}

Authorized Signature:

Printed Name;

Title:

Date:

(" T understand that approved board_ minutes are required to complete this request.

Board minutes should be sent to: DataCellectionProject@mersofmich.con

[¥B-000 (version 2020-09-10) - 'F"égé'é'd_f“é



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 2C6CF0G3-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEO

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum @ MEKS

Municipul Employees’ Retirement System

The employer, a participating municipality or court within the state of Michigan, hereby agrees to adopt
and administer the MERS Defined Benefit {DB) Plan provided by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement
System of Michigan, as authorized by 1996 PA 220, in accordance with MERS Plan Document, as both
may be amended, subject to the terms and conditions herein.

1134 Municipal Way Lansing, M| 48917 | 800.767.MERS (6377) | Fax 517.703.9711

l. Effective Date

The effective date shall be the first day of January, 2021,

Il. Employer name _South Lyon, City of

Municipality number 631501
This is an amendment of the existing Adoption Agreement for the MERS Defined Benefit.

Any changes to plan provisions apply to employees in the division on the effective date, as well as to
new hires ongoing. Definitions will apply for all service accrued after the effective date.

Division number 63150120

Division name on file with MERS Command

I1l. Plan Eligibility

Only those employees eligible for MERS membership may participate in the MERS Defined Benefit. If
an employee classification is included in the plan, then employees that meet this definition will receive
service credit if they work the required number of hours to meet the service credit qualification defined
below. All eligible employees must be reported to MERS.

Using your Division Name above, expand on the employee classifications that are eligible to
participate in MERS. For example, if Division is “General,” please insert specific classifications that are
eligible for MERS such as “Clerical Staff,” “Elected Officials,” “Library Director,” etc.:

Employee classification contains public safety employees: Yes No

Public safety employees include: law enforcement, parole and probation officers, employees
responsible for emergency response (911 dispatch, fire service, paramedics, etc.), public works,
and other skilled support personnel (equipment operators, etc.).

DB-000 {version 2020-09-10) Page 1 of 6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CFOCS-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEQ

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

TR
i T e L

EMFLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of DWV: 63150120

If you elect to include a special classification (chart below), then the employee will be required to meet the
Service Credit Qualification as defined under section IV (Provisions) in order to earn a month of service.
Excluded classification will require additional information below.

To further define eligibility (select all that apply):

Not

Employee Classification ﬁ"“’[“ded Excluded | Employed

Temporary Employees: Those who will work for the municipality fewer than i
months in fotal.

Part-Time Employees: Those who regularly work fewer than per

Seasonal Employees: Those who will work for the municipality

from to : only.

Voter-Elected Officials .
Appointed Officials: An official appointed to a voter-elected office.
Contract Employees

=
R |

R I EE

slels] (8] '8 @
i Q3 3

Probationary Periods (select ong}):

Service will begin after the probationary period has been satisfied. Probationary periods are allowed in
one-month increments, no longer than 12 months. During this probationary period, the employer will
not report or provide service.

The probationary period will be month(s).
Comments:

Service will begin with the employee’s date of hire (no Probationary Period). Effective with the date of
hire, wages paid and any associated contributions must be submitted to MERS.

DB-000 {version 2020-08-10) Page 2 of 6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CF0CS-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEQ

efined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of DV: 63150120

IV. Provisions
1. Service Credit Qualification

To clarify how eligible employees earn service credit, please indicate how many hours per month an
eligible employee needs to work. For example, if you require 10 eight-hour days, this would be 80 hours
per month. If an *hour per day’ has been defined {like ten 7-hour days), electing 70 hours will be required.
Employees must meet the definition of Plan Eligibility in order to earn service credit under the plan.

To receive one month of service credit, an employee shall work (or be paid for as if working)
éo hours in a month.

2. Leaves of Absence

Indicate by checking the boxes below, whether the potential for service credit will be allowed if an
eligible employee is on one of the following types of leave, regardless of meeting the service credit
qualification criteria.

Regardless whether an eligible employee is awarded service credit while on the selected type(s) of leave:
* MERS will skip over these months when determining the FAC amount for benefit calculations.
* Third-party wages are not reported for ieaves of absence.

¢ Employers are not required to remit employer contributions based on leaves of absence when
no wages are paid by the employer. However, an employer may submit additional voluntary
contributions for the period of the leave in an amount determined by the employer.

¢ For contributory divisions, employee contributions are required for service credit to be retained.
Employee contributions will be collected based on the Service Credit Qualification. Employers will
calculate employee contributions due using the employee’s current hourly rate (prior to leave). For
example if 120 hours is required for service credit, then employee contributions shall be equal to
120 hours times the employee’s hourly rate. Employees have three times the length of leave, to a
maximum of five years, to pay required employee contributions. Leaves of absence are required
to be reported to MERS, including the employee’s start and end date per month, along with the
employee's hourly rate.

Type of Leave I ' ' Service Credit ! Service Credit

R | Granted | Excluded
Short- and Long-Term Disability

Workers’ Compensation 0l
Unpaid Family Medical Leave Act {FMLA) @
Other:

For example, sick and accident, administrative, educational, sabbatical, efc.

Other 2: @

Additional leave types as above

Leaves of absence due to military service are governed by the Federal Uniformed Services Employment
and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA), IRC 414(u}, effective January 1, 2007, IRC 401(a)(37).

A s e

DB-000 {version 2020-09-10} Page 30i 6




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 2C6CFOCS-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DEED

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon,

3. Definition of Compensation

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

City of

DIV: 63150120

The Definition of Gompensation is used to calculate a participant’s final average compensation and is
used in determining both employer and employee contributions. Wages paid to employees, calculated

using the elected definition, must be reported to MERS.

Select your Definitiori of Compensation here. If you
choose to customize your defmltlon Sklp this table
and proceed to page 5.

L)

Types of Compensation

ase ags

»
. Box 1 Wages

.

Grss Wags

Regular Wages
Salary or hourly wage X hours
PTO used (sick, vacation, persanal, bereavement, haliday leave, or unclassified)
On-call pay

inclded -

All Regular Wages '

AllRegular Wages
included

o Regular Wales

ingludad

Other Wages
Shift differentials
Overtime
Severance issued over time {weekly/bi-weekly)

Excluded

AN DEner Wages:,
inc_h__:ded__. .

| All-Other Wages. -

included . . -+ -

Limp Sum Paymentis
PTO cash-out
Longsvity
Bonuses
Merit pay
Job certifications
Educational degrees
Maving expenses
Sick payouts
Severance (If issued as Jump sum)

Excluded

Alf Lump Sum;

Payments included'-

} AiLump sim .-

Payments included

Taxable Payments
Travel through a non-accountable plan {i.e. mileage not tracked for reimbursement)
Prizes, gift cards
Parsonal use of a company car
Car allowance

Excluded

Al Taxable -

Payments.included

AlTaxahle .
Payments included

Reimbursement of Nontaxable Expenses {as defined by the IRS)
Gun, togls, equipment, uniform
Phone
Fitness
Milgage reimbursement
Travel through an accouniabie plan (i.e. tracking mileage for reimbursement)

Excluded

Excluded

Excluded

Types of: Deferrals

457 employee and emplayer centributicns
125 cafeteria plan, FSAs and HSAs
IRA contributions

Al Elective
Deferrals included

Excluded

All Elective Defsirals

included -

Types of Beneﬂts

Nontaxable Frmge Benehts nf Employees
Health plan, dental, vision benefits
Workers compansation premiums
. Shart- or Leng-term disability premiums
Groug term or whole life insurance < $50,000

All'Nontaxable
Fringe:Benetits
included

Excluded

Fringe Benefits

Al Nontaxabls -

included

Mandatory Contributions
Defined Benefit employee contributions
MERS Health Care Savings Program employee contributions

All Mancatory
Cortributions
included

1 Excluded

All Mandatory
Contributlons
included

Taxable Fringe Benefits
Clothing reimhbursament
Stipends for healh insurance opt out payments
Group term life insurance > $50,000

Excluded

Excluded

All Taxable Fringe
Benefits Iricluded

Other Benefits / Lump Sum Payments
Workers compensation settlement payments

Excluded

Fxcluded

All Other Lump Sum
Benefits ihcluded

DB-000 (version 2020-09-10)

Page 4 0-1‘“6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2C6CF0C9-69CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEQ

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME: South Lyon, City of Div: 63150120
SKIP THIS TABLE if you selected one of the standard definitions of compensation on page 4.

CUSTOM: If you choose this option, you rriUsi select boxes in each section you would like fo. in(':lu'd'e ih -your Definition of
Compensation. You will be responsmle for adclltlonal reporting details to track custom defmltlons

Types of COmpensatlon

Regular Wages
@ Salary or hourly wage X hours On-call pay
PTO used (sick, vacation, personal, bereavement, noliday leave, of unclassified) [:I Other:
Other Wages apply: YES NO@
Shift differentials Severance issuexi over time {weekly/bi-weekly)

(W

E Overtime

Lump Sum Payments apply: YES[@] NO[O]
PTO cash-out

Qther:

Educational degrees

@ Longevity Maving expensss

D Bonuses Sick payouts

@ Merit pay Severance (if issued as lump sum)
D Job certifications Other:

Taxable Payments apply: YES@ NO.
Travel through a non-accountable plan ({i.e. mileage not tracked for reimbursement)

m
D Prizes, gift cards
O

Personal use of a company ear

Car allowance
Other:

I [T Y

Reimhursement of Nentaxable Expenses (as defined by the IRS) apply: YES NO

D Gun, tools, equipment, uniform Mileage reimbursement

1

Phone

D Fitness

Travel through an accountable plan {i.e. tracking mileage for reimbursement)

(ther:
Types of Deferrals - . o
Elective Deferrals of Employee Premlumsfcantnhutluns app|y YES NO.
457 employee and employer contributions IRA contributions

@0 | ooo

@ 125 cafeteria plan, FSAs and HSAs other: WS 7 ENPLOYEE o dunon s
Types ‘of Benefits ' ' R ' ) T : L
Nontaxable Fringe Benefits of Employees apply: YES. NO.

Health plan, dental, vision benefits

D Workers compensation premiums

Group term or whole life insurance < $50,000
D Shert- or Leng-term disability premiums

Other:
Mandatory Gontributions apply: YES@ ND
Defined Benefit employee contriputions
D MERS Health Care Savings Program emplovee contributions Other:

Taxable Fringe Benefits apply: YES[C] No[#]

Clothing reimbursement Group term life insurance > $50,000

a a4

D Stipends for health insurance opt out payments Other:
Other Benefits / Lump Sum Payments apply: YES ND
Waorkers compensation setilement payments Other:

Ry

DB-000 (version 2020-09-10) Page 5 of 6




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 2C6CF0C-68CE-4472-BD72-462AEDD1DBEQ

Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement Addendum

EMPLOYER NAME:South Lyon, City of DV:63150120

V. Execution:
Authorized Designee of Governing Body of Municipality or Chief Judge of Court

This foregoing Addendum is hereby approved by City of South Lyon

at a Board Meeting which took place on:

{mm/ddAnyyy)

Authorized Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

(" I understand that approved board minutes are required to complete this request.

Boar‘d m-i nutes Shou1 d be sent to: QQI_QCO'“ ect’i‘ onpraiect@mﬁrsofm{é:h - Com

DB-000 (version 2020-08-10) Page 6 of 6



o

Mees  +lew
Docoment

Restated Plan Document of 2012

Sec. 2A. Definitions; A through L. [MCL. 38.1502a.]

Q)

(2)

(3)

(3)(a)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Sec_2A_v071112

“Accumulated balance” means the total balance in a member's, vested former
member’s, or beneficiary’s individual account under Benefit Program DC or the
defined confribution component of the Hybrid Program.

‘Accumulated contributions” means the sum of all amounts credited to a
member’s individual account in the reserve for employee contributions.

“Beneficiary” means an individual who is being paid or who has entitlement to the
future payment of a retirement allowance or a return of contributions on account
of a reason other than the individual's membership in the retirement system.

“Board” means the Retlirement Board.,
“Certification date” means August 15, 1996. [MCL 38.1502a(1)]

“Chief judge” means the chief judge of a judicial circuit court, a judicial district
court, or a judicial probate court as provided in the Revised Judicature Act of
1961, 1961 PA 236, MCL 600.101 to 600.9948. [MCL 38.1502a(2)]

“Compensation” means the salary or wages paid a member for personal services
rendered the member's participating municipality or participating court while a
member of the retirement system.

(a) *Compensation” shall include all of the following:
(i) Longevity pay, overtime pay, and shift differentials.

(i) Pay for periods of absence from work by reason of vacation,
holiday, and sickness.

(i) Deferred compensation amounts under eligible deferred
compensation programs and premiums for annuities and
permanent life insurance policies that are fransferred to the
ownership of the member upon retirement.

(iv) Worker's compensation weekly benefits if the participating
municipality or participating court reports the worker's
compensation benefit to the retirement system and the payments
are higher than regular earnings.

() A member's pre-tax contributions to a plan established under
Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code.

(vi)  Transcript fees paid to a court reporter, net of expenses, for
performing services at the request of the participating municipality
or participating court that employs the court reporter.



Sec_2A_v071112

(b)

(€

(vii)

(viil)

)

(xi)

A car allowance to the extent taxable on the member's W-2.

Short term disability or long term disability benefit payments if the
participating municipality or participating court reports the
payments to the retirement system.

Payments available to employees for achievement of established
annual (or similar period) performance goals in the form of
variable compensation (over base wages), merit compensation, or
similar compensation.

Payments available to employees for attainment of educational
degrees from an accredited college or university (associate,
bachelor, or higher), or for attainment, maintenance or acquisition
of job-related certification.

Lump sum payments of included compensation to the extent that
such payments are attributable to the member's personal service
rendered during the period of years for which their final average
compensation is based.

“Compensation” shall not include any of the following:

(i

(if)
(iif)

()
(vi)
{vii)

(iil)

Remuneration or reimbursement not specifically described in this
subsection or recognized by the board, such as allowancas for
clothing, equipment, cleaning, and travel.

Reimbursement of expenses.

Bonus payments, except as provided under subsection (8)(a)(ix)
and (x).

Termination pay.

Severance pay.

Payments in consideration of unused sick leave.
The value of fringe benefits.

Items of remuneration that are the basis of a potential or actual
benefit from another retirement program.

A participating municipality or participating court may exclude any of the
items of compensation listed in paragraph (@) by resolution of the
governing body or administrative order of the chief judge. The resolution
or administrative order shall be uniformly applicable to all members
employed by the participating municipality or court who are covered by
the same benefit program coverage classification. A certified copy of the



7

(9

(10)

Sec_2A_v0T1112

resolution or administrative order shall be filed with the retirement board
within 10 days after adoption or issuance. In the absence of a resolution
or administrative order, compensation shall be reported in accordance
with paragraphs (a) and (b).

(d) Compensation under Benefit Program DC and under the defined
contribution component of Benefit Program H shall be defined in
accordance with Section 19A(4)(c)ii).

“Defined Contribution,” “DC,” or “DC Program” means Benefit Program DC
established under section 19A.

‘Direct rollover” means a payment by the retirement system to the eligible
retirement plan spedified by the distributee.

“Distributee” includes a member or vested former member. Distributee also
includes the member's or vested former member's surviving spouse or the
member’s or vested former member's spouse or former spouse under an eligible
domestic relations order, with regard to the interest of the spouse or former
spouse. Effective July 15, 2009, a distributee includes a nonspouse beneficiary
who Is a designated beneficiary as defined by section 401(a)(9)(E) of the Internal
Revenue Code. A nonspouse beneficiary may rollover the distribution only to an
individual retirement account or individual retirement annuity established for the
purpose of receiving the distribution, and the account or annuity will be treated as
an “inherited” individual retirement account or annuity.

“Eligible retirement plan.” Beginning January 1, 2002, except as otherwise

provided in this subsection, “eligible retirement plan” means the following types of

plans established under the listed sections of the Internal Revenue Code:

(a) a qualified trust described in section 401(a);

(B an annuity plan described in section 403(a);

{c) a tax-sheltered annuity described in section 403(b);

(d) an individual retirement account described in section 408(a);

(e an individual retirement annuity described in section 408(b);

4] a Roth IRA individual retirement account described in section 408A; and

(9) a deferred compensation plan under section 457(b) that is maintained by
a state, or an agency or instrumentality of a state, a political subdivision of

a state, or an agency or instrumentality of a political subdivision of a state,

that accepts the distributee’s eligible rollover distribution. However, in the case
of an eligible rollover distribution to a surviving spouse on or before December



R I S s

(11

(12)

Sec_2A_ v071112

Restated Plan Document of 2012

31, 2001, an eligible retirement plan means an individual retirement account or
an individual retirement annuity.

“Eligible rollover distribution.” Beginning January 1, 2002, “eligible rollover
distribution” means a distribution of all or any portion of the balance to the credit
of the distributee. Eligible rollover distribution does not include any of the

following:

(a) A distribution made for the life or life expectancy of the distributee or the
joint lives or joint life expectancies of the distributee and the distributee’s
designated beneficiary.

(b) A distribution for a specified period of 10 years or more.

(c) A distribution to the extent that the distribution is required under section
401(a)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(d) The portion of any distribution that is not includable in federal gross

income, determined without regard to the exclusion for net unrealized
appreciation with respect to employer securities; provided, that any
portion of a distribution that is not included in federal gross income may
be an eligible rollover distribution for purposes of a rollover to: (1)(i} an
eligible retirement plan listed in subsection (10)(a) or (b) provided that the
ptan is a defined contribution plan that will separately account for the
distribution, including the taxable and non-taxable portions of the
distribution, and that the rollover is a direct trustee-to-trustee transfer, and
(i) beginning January 1, 2007, an eligible retirement plan listed in
subsection (10)(a) that is a defined benefit plan or (10)(c) provided that
the plan will separately account for the distribution, inciuding the taxable
and non-taxable portions of the distribution, and that the rollover is a
direct trustee-to-trustee transfer, or; (2) an eligible retirement plan listed in
subsection (10)(d) or (e), or; (iii) beginning January 1, 2008, an eligible
retirement plan listed in subsection (10)(f).

“FFinal average compensation” means any of the following:

(a)

One-fifth of the aggregate amount of compensation paid and earned by a
member during the period of 5 consecutive years of the member's
credited service in which the aggregate amount of compensation paid and
earned is highest, known as FAC-5. If the member has less than 5 years
of credited service, final average compensation means the aggregate
amount of compensation paid and earned by the member divided by the
member's credited service. A member who has credited service in force
with more than 1 participating municipality or participating court shall have
a separate final average compensation computed based on the member's
compensation record with each participating municipality and participating
court.




.

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(17)

(18)

Sec_2A vO71112

(b) If the participating municipality or court has adopted benefit program
FAC-N, where N shall be a whole number of years not less than three,
1/N of the aggregate amount of compensation paid and earned by a
member during the period of N consecutive years of the member's
credited service in which the aggregate amount of compensation paid and
earned is highest. If the member has less than N years of credited
service, final average compensation means the aggregate amount of
compensation paid and earned by the member divided by the member's
credited service. A member who has credited service in force with more
than 1 participating municipality or participating court shall have a
separate final average compensation computed based on the member's
compensation record with each participating municipality or participating
court.

{c) For a member who is a judge of the district court, the recorders court of
the city of Detroit, or the circuit court, and has converted a portion or all of
his or her state salary standardization payment as provided for in section
504 of the Judges Retirement Act of 1992, Act No. 234 of the Public Acts
of 1992, being section 38.2504 of the Michigan Compiled Laws, as an
addition to his or her state base salary under Act No. 234 of the Pubtic
Acts of 19892, being sections 38.2101 to 38.2670 of the Michigan
Compiled Laws, the difference between the figure that would otherwise
be used under subdivision (a) or (b) to compute the member's retirement
benefits, and the amount of the state salary standardization payment
converted.

“Governing body” means the representative legislative body of a municipality, or
the administrative board or commission of a public corporation or instrumentality
that does not have a representative legislative body. [MCL 38.1502a(3)]

‘Hybrid" or “Hybrid Program” means Benefit Program H established under
section 19B. :

“Internal Revenue Code” means the United States Internal Revenue Code of
1986.

“Judicial circuit court” means a judicial circuit of the circuit court as provided in
section 11 of article VI of the state constitution of 1963. [MCL 38.1502a(4)]

“Judicial district court” means a judicial district of the district court as provided in
section 8101 of the Revised Judicature Act of 1961, 1961 PA 236, MCL
600.8101. [MCL 38.1502a(5)]

“Judicial employee® means an individual who is paid compensation for personal
service rendered for a participating court. Judicial employee does not include
anyone who is a municipal employee under section 2B(3) or anyone who is
specifically excluded as a municipal employee under section 2B(3).



Restated Plan Document of 2012

SR

(19)  “Judicial probate court” means a county probate court or probate court district as
provided in section 15 of arficle VI of the state constitution of 1963. [MCL
38.1502a(8)]

(20) "Limitation year" means, for purposes of section 415 of the Internal Revenue
Code, the calendar year.

Implementing Form: Regolution Defining ‘Compensation” for MERS Retirement Purposes (F96)

History: 1984 PA 427, Eff Jan 2, 1985,1996 PA 220, Eff Aug 15, 1996; Ptan Document of 1998, Eff Oct
1, 1996; Restated Plan Document of 2012, Eff July 1, 2012; Amended Imd Eff July 11, 2012.

Sec_2A_v071112




MERS

Municipal Employees’ Retirement System

Municipal Employees’ Retirement
System of Michigan

Annual Actuarial Valuation Report
December 31, 2019 - South Lyon, City of (6315)




800.521.0498 | P: 248.799.9000 | www.grsconsulting.com

Spring, 2020

South Lyon, City of

In care of:

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Michigan
1134 Municipal Way

Lansing, Michigan 48917

This report presents the results of the Annual Actuarial Valuation, prepared for South Lyon, City of (6315) as of
December 31, 2019. The report includes the determination of liahilities and contribution rates resulting from
the participation in the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan {"MERS”). This report contains
the minimum actuarially determined contribution requirement, in alignment with the MERS Plan Document,
Actuarial Policy, and the Michigan Constitution and governing statutes. South Lyon, City of is responsible for
the employer contributions needed to provide MERS benefits for its employees and former employees.

The purposes of this valuation are to:

¢ Measure funding progress as of December 31, 2015,

+ Establish contribution requirements for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021,

e Provide infarmation regarding the identification and assessment of risk,

» Provide actuarial information in connection with applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board
{GASB) statemenits, and

* Provide information to assist the local unit of government with state reporting requirements.

This valuation assumed the continuing ability of the plan sponsor to make the contributions necessary to fund
this plan. A determination regarding whether or not the plan sponsor is actually able to do so is cutside our
scope of expertise and was not performed.

The findings in this report are based on data and other information through December 31, 2019. The valuation
was based upon information furnished by MERS concerning Retirement System benefits, financial transactions,
plan provisions and active members, terminated members, retirees and beneficiaries. We checked for internal
reasonability and year-to-year consistency, but did not audit the data. We are not responsible for the accuracy
or campleteness of the information provided by MERS.




South Lyon, City of
Spring, 2020
Page 2

The Municipal Employees’ Retirement Act, PA 427 of 1984 and the MERS’ Plan Docurnent Article VI sec. 71
{1){d), provides the MERS Board with the authority to set actuarial assumptions and methods after
consultation with the actuary. As the fiduciary of the plan, MERS Retirement Board sets certain assumptions
for funding and GASB purposes. These assumptions are checked regularly through a comprehensive study,
called an Experience Study. A study was completed in 2015, as prepared by the prior actuary, and is the basis
of the demographic assumptions and methods currently in place. At the February 28, 2019 board meeting, the
MERS Retirement Board adopted new economic assumptions effective with the December 31, 2019 annual
actuarial valuation, which will impact contributions beginning in 2021. At the February 27, 2020 board
meeting, the MERS Retirement Board adopted demographic assumptions effective with the December 31,
2020 annual actuarial valuation, which will impact contributions beginning in 2022. An illustration of the
potential impact is found in this report.

The Michigan Department of Treasury provides required assumptions to be used for purposes of Public Act
202 reporting. These assumptions are for reporting purposes only and do not impact required contributiens.
Please refer to the State Reporting page found at the end of this report for information for this filing.

- For a full list of all the assumptions used, please refer to the division-specific assumptions described in table(s)
in this report, and to the Appendix on the MERS website at:
http://www.mersafmich.com/Portals/0/Assets/Resources/AAV-Appendix/MERS-
2019AnnualActuarialValuation-Appendix.pdf

The actuarial assumptions used for this valuation are reasonable for purposes of the measurement.

This report does not reflect the recent and still developing impact of COVID-19, which is likely to influence
demographic and economic experience, at least in the short-term. We will continue to monitor these
developments and their impact on the MERS Defined Benefit and Hybrid plans. Actual experience will be
reflected in each subsequent annual valuation, as experience emerges.

This report has been prepared by actuaries who have substantial experience valuing public employee
retirement systems. To the best of our knowledge the information contained in this report is accurate and
fairly presents the actuarial position of South Lyon, City of as of the valuation date. All calculations have been
made in conformity with generally accepted actuarial principles and practices, with the Actuarial Standards of
Practice issued by the Actuarial Standards Board, and with applicable statutes.

David T. Kausch, Rebecca L. Stouffer, and Mark Buis are members of the American Academy of Actuaries.
These actuaries meet the Academy’s Qualification Standards to render the actuarial opinions contained herein.
The signing actuaries are independent of the plan sponsor. GRS maintains independent consulting agreements
with certain local units of government for services unrelated to the actuarial consulting services provided in
this report.

The Retirement Board of the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan confirms that the System
provides for payment of the required employer contribution as described in Section 20m of Act No. 314 of
1965 (MCL 38.1140m).




South Lyon, City of
Spring, 2020
Page 3

This information is purely actuarial in nature. It is not intended to serve as a substitute for legal, accounting or
investment advice.

This report was prepared at the request of the MERS Retirement Board and may be provided only in its
entirety by the municipality to other interested parties {(MERS customarily provides the full report on request
to associated third parties such as the auditor for the municipality). GRS is not responsible for the
consequences of any unauthorized use. This report should not be relied on for any purpose other than the
purposes described herein. Determinations of financial results, associated with the benefits described in this
report, for purposes other than those identified above may be significantly different.

If you have reason to believe that the plan provisions are incorrectly described, that important plan provisions
relevant to this valuation are not described, that conditions have changed since the calculations were made,
that the information provided in this report is inaccurate or is in anyway incomplete, or if you need further
information in order to make an informed decision on the subject matter in this report, please contact your
Regional Manager at 1.800.767.MERS (6377).
Sincerely,
David T. Kausch, FSA, FCA, EA, MAAA
S
bacea. D)

Rebecca L. Stouffer, ASA, FCA, MAAA

%Aj \Bn.f_

Mark Buis, FSA, FCA, EA, MAAA




Table of Contents

E X LTI SUI I IATY s crciret s it rtierretrescetreesesrnes s ee e ernr s essas e e easearabsbae e srensassaseaaabbaes hesbsea e nronaeasasseasas atsntnssasensnsensanarentonian 1
Table 1: Employer Contribution Details For the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2021 ... coriiiiiiieee e 8
Table 2: Benefit ProviSiOnS ..o e et s s e r e et eer e ar e e e e aners 9
Table 3: PartiCiPant SUMIMIAIY ..o i rer s rs e s s b e e s b b be ek rae st e e e sas e bR e e e s b s esasbssesantasssnassnrbnssntans 11
Table 4: Reported Assets (IMarket ValUR) ..o et ce et tie et st sttt s e st et eneneeetmesaenbn s e s beneentean 12
Table 5: FIow Of VAIUSHION ASSELS .....ooiie et et sttt st b e et e s e sb et e b 13
Table 6: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities and Valuation Assets as of December 31, 2019, ccvvvirienreeee e 14
Table 7: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule ... e 15
Tables 8 and 9: Division-Based Comparative SCRETUIES ... s rresrerinnisierssris e rs ar s rsssss s rnssssresissa e 16
Table 10: Division-Based Layered Amoirtization SChedula ... e rrer e e e s s e s e 21
GASB 68 INFOMMALION ..ot ettt et bt et e 4o s b e e b b e e e bd e b e ba e b s saeasme bt a 26
B eI I PrOVISION HISTOIY cuuviieiirreiritarissassvrrarrsses s reerasree s seisstensassressstssissasteststeriaets isenistesissssisisstsiesteristnerassraissaes 27
Plan Provisions, Actuarial Assumptions, and Actuarial Funding Method ... e 30
Y] 0Ty Va1 o) =T SO 31
AT R PO TEINE 11vriiiicivrriurereetirercie it rteeesiesrstett s entaesas s nabatensers sereasenssnssmnsssrs nnteaeaseserssisnsnnssesearssrersinstantenatesssensssnnsn 33

South Lyon, City of (6315} — 2019




Executive Summary

Funded Ratio

The funded ratio of a plan is the percentage of the dollar value of the actuarial accrued liahility that is covered
by the actuarial value of assets. While funding ratio may be a useful plan measurement, understanding a plan’s

funding trend may be more important than a particular point in time. Refer to Table 7 to find a history of this
information.

R o 12/31/2019 — | ~12/31/2018
Funded Ratio* 66% 68%

* Reflects assets from Surplus divisions, if any.

Throughout this report are references to valuation resulis generated prior to the 2018 valuation date. Results
prior to 2018 were received directly from the prior actuary or extracted from the previous valuation system by
MERS's technology service provider.

South Lyon, City of {6315) - 2019




Required Employer Contributions:

Your required employer contributions are shown in the following table. Employee contributions, if any, are in
addition to the employer contributions. Changes to the actuarial assumptions and methods based on the 2015
Experience Study are fully phased-in with this valuation.

Effective this valuation, the MERS Retirement Board has adopted a reduction in the investment rate of return
assumption from 7.75% to 7.35% and a reduction in the rate of wage inflation from 3.75% to 3.00%. Changes
to these assumptions are effective for contributions beginning in 2021 and may be phased-in. This valuation
reflects the first year of phase-in.

By default, MERS will invoice you based on the amount in the “No Phase-in"” columns. This amount will be
considered the minimum reguired contribution unless you request to be billed the “Phase-in” rates. If you wish
to be billed using the phased-in rates, please contact MERS, at which point the alternate minimum required
contribution will be the amount in the “Phase-in” columns. Please note that this approach is different than in
years past.

; .. Percentagé of Payroll = 0 0| o070 Mointhly S Based on Prajectad Payrdll

e Phase-in: | No Phase-in .| - Phase-in No Phase-in. | . :Phase-in . | ‘No Phase-in, Phasé-in ‘No Phase-in
- Valuation Datez| 12/31/2015 | 12/31/2019 | 12/31/2018 | 12/31/2018.| 12/31/2019 | “12/31/2019 } 12/31/2018 ;| '12/31/2018

R ' . Julyl, Slutyd, ] dukya, oy raayas | Eaayd, R uya, | culy,

. Fiscal Year Beginning:| - 20210 o de2n ] 2020 2020 7 | 202d - | Candn o) a0k 2020 -

Division

01: AFSME’ ' . ) D R e - Ciels ass7a|s  deser|s ois2mols  1se3s
02-PolfFire - 1 - 1 1a776|  15574 14,019 14,286
10~ Nor Union - Vo S - B R 4 1641 12556 | - sass|.- - se6a
11 - Clerical . N - 1 1 B ] 2,175 2,397 1,692 - 1,786
20 - Command ' L cozaawl o zaspw) ¢ Taaaow] 7 2zeew]cs  Bess| T Loawsy| o 9wsn] 0 G433
Municipality Total 3 55,451 | & 58,877 | § 51,621 | 3 52,808

Employee contribution rates:

o _ Employee Contribution Rata .

Valuation Date:] . . 12/31/2019 Lo 12f31f2018
Division
0L AFSME D1 - el 2mow o EL 250
02 - Pol/Fire - 1.00% O 100%
0-NonUnion - . 5. o 127%, . - e 137%
11 - Clerical 2.09% 1.27%
20-Command. .. .. .. . 200 | v 175%

The employer may contribute more than the minimum required contributions, as these additional
contributions will earn investment income and may result in lower future contribution requirements.
Employers making contributions in excess of the minimum requirements may elect to apply the excess
contribution immediately to a particular division, or segregate the excess into one or mare of what MERS calls
“Surplus” divisions. An election in the first case would immediately reduce any unfunded accrued liability and
lower the amortization payments throughout the remaining amortization period. An election to set up Surplus
divisions would not immediately lower future contributions, however the assets from the Surplus division
could be transferred to an unfunded division in the future to reduce the unfunded liability in future years, or to
be used to pay all or a portion of the minimum required contribution in a future year. For purposes of this
report, the assets in any Surplus division have been included in the municipality’s total assets, unfunded
accrued liability and funded status, however, these assets are not used in calculating the minimum required
coniribution.

MERS strongly encourages employers to contribute more than the minimum contribution shown above.

South Lyon, City of {6315) - 2019 -2-




Assuming that experience of the plan meets actuarial assumptions:
* To accelerate to a 100% funding ratio in 10 years, estimated monthly employer contributions for the fiscal
year beginning in 2021 for the entire employer would be $84,031, instead of $58,877.

How and Why Do These Numbers Change?

in a defined benefit plan contributions vary from one annual actuarial valuation to the next as a result of the
following:

® Changes in benefit provisions (see Table 2)
® Changes in actuarial assumptions and methods (see the Appendix)

* Experience of the plan {investment experience and demographic experience); this is the difference
between actual experience of the plan and the actuarial assumptions.

Comments on Investment Rate of Return Assumption

A defined benefit plan is funded by employer contributions, participant contributions, and investment
earnings. lnvestment earnings have historically provided a significant portion of the funding. The larger the
share of benefits being provided from investment returns, the smaller the required contributions, and vice
versa. Determining the contributions required to prefund the premised retirement benefits requires an
assumption of what investment earnings are expected to add to the fund over a long period of time. This is
called the investment Return Assumption.

The MERS Investment Return Assumption is 7.35% per year. This, along with all of our other actuarial
assumptions, is reviewed at least every five years in an Experience Study that compares the assumptions used
against actual experience and recommends adjustments if necessary. If your municipality would like to explore
contributions at lower assumed investment return assumptions, please review the “what if” projection
scenarios later in this report.

Assumption Change in 2019

At the February 28, 2019 board meeting, the MERS Retirement Board adjusted key economic assumptions.
These assumptions, in particular the investment return assumption, have a significant effect on a plan’s
required contribution and funding level. Historically low interest rates, along with high equity market
valuations, have {ed to reductions in projected returns for most asset classes. This has resulted in a Board
adopted reduction in the investment rate of return assumption from 7.75% to 7.35%, effective with the
December 31, 2019 valuation, first impacting 2021 contributions. The Board also changed the assumed rate of
wage inflation from 3.75% to 3.00%, with the same effective date.

Assumption Change in 2020

A 5-year experience study analyzing historical experience from 2013 through 2018 was completed in February
2020. in addition to changes te the economic assumptions which will take effect with the Fiscal year 2021
contribution rates, the experience study recommends updated demographic assumptions, including
adjustmenits to the following actuarial assumptions: mortality, retirement, disability, and termination rates, A
complete description of the proposed assumptions may be found in the Appendix to the valuation. Changes to
the demographic assumptions resulting from the experience study have been approved by the MERS
Retirement Board and are to be effective beginning with the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation first

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019 -3-




impacting 2022 contributions. This report includes a “What If” scenario of the approved 2020 assumption
changes in an effort to show employers the anticipated impact on contribution rates.

Comments on Asset Smoothing

To avoid dramatic spikes and dips in annual contribution requirements due to short term fluctuations in asset
markets, MERS applies a technique called asset smoothing. This spreads out each year’s investment gains or
losses over the prior year and the following four years. This smoothing method is used to determine your
actuarial value of assets (valuation assets), which is then used to determine both your funded ratio and your
required contributions. The (smoothed) actuarial rate of return for 2019 was 4.77%, while the actual market
rate of return was 13.41%. To see historical details of the market rate of return, compared to the smoothed
actuarial rate of return, refer to this report’s Appendix, or view the “How Smoothing Works” video on the
Defined Benefit resource page of the MERS website.

As of December 31, 2019, the actuariat value of assets is 101% of market value due to asset smoothing. This
means that meeting the actuarial assumption in the next few years will require average annual market returns
that exceed the 7.35% investment return assumption, or contribution requirements will continue to increase.

If the December 31, 2019 valuation results were based on market value instead of actuarial value:

e The funded percent of your entire municipality would be 85% (instead of 66%); and

¢ Your total employer contribution requirement for the fiscal year starting July 1, 2021 would be
$720,180 (instead of $706,524).

Alternate Scenarios to Estimate the Potential Volatility of Results
("What If Scenarios")

The calculations in this report are based on assumptions about long-term economic and demographic
behavior. These assumptions will never materialize in a given year, except by coincidence. Therefore the
results will vary from one year to the next. The volatility of the results depends upon the characteristics of the
plan. For example:

e Open divisions that have substantial assets compared to their active employee payroll will have more
velatile employer cantribution rates due to investment return fluctuations.

® Open divisions that have substantial accrued liability compared to their active employee payroll will
have more volatile employer contribution rates due to demographic experience fluctuations.

e Small divisions will have mare volatile contribution patterns than larger divisions because statistical
fluctuations are relatively larger among small populations.

¢ Shorter amortization periods result in more volatile contribution patterns.

Many assumptions are important in determining the required employer contributions. In the following table,
we show the impact of varying the Investment Return assumption and the demographic assumptions. Lower
investment returns would result in higher required employer contributions, and vice-versa. Alternate
demographic assumptions may result in higher or lower employer contributions depending on the
demographic characteristics of the plan participants.

The relative impact of the economic and demographic scenarios below will vary from year to year, as the
participant demographics change. The impact of each scenario should be analyzed for a given year, not from
year to year. The results in the table are based on the December 31, 2019 valuation, and are for the

South Lyon, City of {6315} - 2019

-4-



municipality in total, not by division. These results do not reflect a phase in of the impact of the new actuarial
assumptions.

It is important to note that calculations in this report are mathematical estimates based upon assumptions
regarding future events, which may or may not materialize. Actuarial calculations can and do vary from one
valuation to the next, sometimes significantly depending on the group’s size. Projections are not predictions.
Future valuations wifl be based on actual future experience.

In addition to economic assumption changes effective with Fiscal Year 2021 contributions, the Retirernent
Board has also adopted a change to certain demographic and other assumptions effective for the December
31, 2020 valuation which will impact the Fiscal Year 2022 contributions. Please see the section labeled
“Assumption Change in 2020” for more information. The scenario shown using these assumptions as of
December 31, 2019 is illustrative only. The actual impact of this change when reflected in the 2020 Annual
Actuarial Valuation report will be different.

~ . Assumed Futuré Annual Smoothed Rate of Investment Return . . -
Sl o 2020 Adopted |
- Lo Lower Future | - Demographic - | ~Valuation' -
12/31/2019 Valuation Results ... |~ ‘AnnualReturns’ * | assumptions - | = Assumptions
Investment Return Assumption 5.35% 7.35% 7.35%
Wage Increase Assumption 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Accrued Liability S 23,627,042 | S 19,089,435 | S 18,599,406
Valuation Assets™ S 12,243,784 | S 12,243,784 | § 12,243,784
Unfunded Accrued Liability S 11,383,258 [ S 6,845,651 | S 6,355,622
Funded Ratio 52% 64% 66%
Monthly Normal Cost S 31,683 | S 17,793 | § 17,417
Monthly Amortization Payment S 64,028 | 5 44964 | § 41,460
Total Employer Contribution’ ¢ 95,711 | $ 62,757 | § 58,877

! The Valuation Assets include assets from Surplus divisions, if any.

? If assets exceed accrued liabilities for a division, the division may have an overfunding credit to reduce the division’s
employer contribution requirement. If the overfunding credit is larger than the normal cost, the division's full credit is
included in the municipality’s amortization payment above but the division’s total contribution requirement is zero. This
can cause the displayed normal cost and amortization payment to not add up to the displayed total employer
contribution.

3 Based on current demographic assumptions.

Projection Scenarios

The next two pages show projections of the plan's funded ratio and computed employer contributions under
the actuarial assumptions used in the valuation and alternate economic and demographic assumption
scenarios. All three projections take into account the past investment losses that will continue to affect the
actuarial rate of return in the short term.

The 7.35%/3.00% scenario provides an estimate of computed employer contributions based on current
actuarial assumptions, and a projected 7.35% market return. The other two scenarios may be useful if the
municipality chooses to budget more conservatively, and make contributions in addition to the minimum
requirements. The 2020 adopted demographic assumption and 5.35%/3.00% projection scenarios provide an
indication of the potential required employer contribution if these assumptions were met over the long-term.

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019 -5-




Valuation | Fiscal Year | o I Computed Annual
Year Ending | Beginning |Actuarial Accrued| - _ ' Funded - Employer
- 12/31 7/1 Liability - |Vvaluation Assets’] - Percentage Contribution
7.35%"/3.00% - Current Demographic Assumptions
NO 5-YEAR PHASE-IN
2019 2021 S 18,599,406 1 $ 12,243,784 66% 5 706,524
2020 2022 $ 19,300,000 12,900,000 67% S 716,000
2021 2023 $  20,000,000] % 13,500,000 68% S 730,000
2022 2024 S 20,800,000]S 14,100,000 68% ) 753,000
2023 2025 S 21,500,000 1 S 15,000,000 70% S 750,000
2024 2026 5 22,100,000 ) $ 15,800,000 71% ) 755,000
7.35%1/3.00% - Adopted 2020 Demographic Assumptions
NO 5-YEAR PHASE-IN
2019 2021 S 19,089,435 | $ 12,243,784 64% S 753,084
2020 2022 S 19,800,0001% 12,900,000 65% $ 764,000
2021 2023 S 20,600,000 | § 13,500,000 66% s 780,000
2022 2024 S 21,400,0001% 14,200,000 66% S 806,000
2023 2025 S 22,100,000 ] & 15,100,000 68% S 803,000
2024 2026 $ 22,800,000 |$ - 15,900,000 70% ) 808,000
5.35%"/3.00% - Current Pemographic Assumptions
NO 5-YEAR PHASE-IN
2019 2021 S 23,627,042 | S 12,243,784 52% S 1,148,532
2020 2022 S 24,400,000 | & 12,600,000 52% 5 1,180,000
2021 2023 $ 25200,000|$ 13,200,000 53% 5 1,200,000
2022 2024 S 26,000,000]$ 14,000,000 54% S 1,220,000
2023 2025 $ 26,800,000|$ 15,100,000 56% S 1,220,000
2024 2026 S 27,400,000 ]|S$ 16,000,000 58% ) 1,230,000

! Represents both the interest rate for discounting liabilities and the future investment return assumption on the Market
Value of assets.
? Valuation Assets do not include assets from Surplus divisions, if any.

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019




Funded Percentage
120%
1005
80%
60%
40%
20%
0% e e : T - r — g
N4 o P & i
& » » P o
Calendar Year December 31,
emuezen 7 35913 00% - No Surplus == w2020 Adepted Dem. Assm. - s 5 35%/3.00%
Notes:

All projected funded percentages are shown with no phase-in.
The green indicator lines have been added at 60% funded and 21 years following the valuation date for PA 202 purposes.

Computed Annual Employer Contribution
41,800,000
$1,600,000
-t - -l
$1,400,000 o= -
- - -
41,200,000 —t T v w0 B L 1
j——

$1,000,000 p—— ﬂ-'

- = ST
SEOD000 {25 T, 1
$600,000 - .

\}
$400,000 .
$200,000 ‘-. T
40 1 : T T v - r - - - y - + T T - - - - T 1
,‘9"& ’\9"3’ '19'1? "Sgi" &
Fiscal Year
smwe] 35%/3.00% - No Surplus =m 2020 Adopted Dem. Assm. am s 535%/3.00%
Notes:

All projected contributions are shown with no phase-in.

South Lyon, City of {6315) - 2019




Table 1: Employer Contribution Details For the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2021

" Employer Contributions i DR I
U - | paymentofthe | Comistited | "Compiited . . ] Employee
“Tot# | Employee | Employer Unfunded | Emplayer © | Employer Blended ER | Blended ER' | “Contribut. -
- Normal - | . contribut, - | Normal | “Accrued’ Cantribut. No ‘contribut. | RateMo. | RateWith' | ‘Conversign
Divisian S ; tost | Rate | Cest ™ | tabiliy' | . phasedn | with Phaser| Phasedn® | Phase-n® | 7 Facter®.
Percentage of Payroll _
ol-ARSME. - N B ~ oo . -
02 - Pol/Fire 10.90%] - - - -
10 - Man Union o T svaawloe : R RS p R
11 - Clerical 12.35% E - - |
20 - Cammand s CU 10,049 8.04% e4s%| 024528 a0 ) N IR X5
Estimated Monthly Contribution®
01 : AFSME - e s e eamEls T 13z sc o asser]s ks
02 - Pol/Fire S e 5691 9,883 15,574 14,776
10-ban Union - ..~ ) Soor : < o1seef . 10657 12,556 11,641
11 - Clerical N ' 684 ! 2397 2,175
20- Command ", s sl toagm) 7 sgEx| o isgsa{ oo sa8s
Total Municipality 4 17,417 | & 41,460 | & 58,877 ] % 55,451
Fstimated Annual Contribution® $  209004|$  ao7s20 |3 voes24(s  essanz

The above employer contribution requirements are in addition to the employee contributions, if any.

If employee contributions are increased/decreased by 1.00% of pay, the employer contribution requirement will decrease/increase by the Emplayee Contribution
Conversien Factor. The conversion factor is usually under 1%, because employee contributions may be refunded at termination of employment, and not used to fund
retirement pensions. Employer contributions will alf be used to fund pensicns.

For divisions that are open to new hires, estimated contributions are based on projected fiscal year payrall, Actual contributions will be based on actual reported
monthly pays, and will be different from the above amounts. For divisions that will have no new hires (i.e., closed divisions), inveices will be based en the above dollar
amounts which are based on projected fiscal year payroll. See description of Open Dlvisions and Closed Divisions in the Appendix.

Note that if the overfunding credit is larger than the normal cost, the full credit is shown above but the total contribution requirement is zero. This wil} cause the
displayed normal cost and unfunded accrued liability contributions to not add across.

L

For linked divisions, the employer will be invoiced the Computed Employer Contribution No Phase-in rate shown above for each linked division {a contribution rate for
the open division; a contributicn doliar for the closed-but-linkad division), unfess the employer elects to contribute the Blended Employer Contribution rate shown
above, by contacting MERS at 800-767-MERS {6377).

Please see the Comments on Asset Smoothing in the Executive Summary of this report.

South Lyon, City of (6315} - 2019 8-




Table 2; Benefit Provisions

01 - AFSME: Closed to new hires B

Benefit Multiplier:

Normal Retirement Age:
Vesting:

Early Retirement (Unreduced):
Early Retirement (Reduced):

Final Average Compensation:
Employee Contributions:

DC Plan for New Hires:

Act 88:

2019 Valﬁétion

2018 Valuation

2.50% Multiplier {80% max)
60

10 years

55/25

50/25

55/15

5 years

2.50%

2/1/2018

Yes {Adopted 11/3/1969)

02 - Pol/Fire: Closed to new hires -

Benefit Multiplier:

Normal Retirement Age:
Vesting:

Early Retirement (Unreduced):
Early Retirement (Reduced):

Final Average Compensation:
Employee Contributions:

DC Plan for New Hires:

Act 88:

2019 Valuation

2.50% Multiplier (80% max)
60

10 years

55/25

50/25

55/15

5vyears

2.50%

2/1/2018

Yes (Adopted 11/3/1969)

2018 Valuation

2.50% Multiplier (80% max}
60

10 years

55/25

50/25

55/15

5 years

1.00%

4/1/2018

Yes (Adopted 11/3/1969)

10 - Non Union: Closed to new hires

Benefit Multiplier;

Normal Retirement Age:
Vesting:

Early Retirement {Unreduced):
Early Retirement {Reduced):

Final Average Compensation:
Employee Contributions:

DC Plan for New Hires:

Act 88:

2019 Valuation

2.50% Multiplier {80% max)
60

10 years

55/25

50/25

55/15

5 years

1.00%

4172018

Yes {Adopted 11/3/1969)

2018 Véluaiion

. 2.50% Multiplier {80% max)

60

8 years

55/25

50/25

55/15

5 years

1.27%

1/1/2018

Yes (Adopted 11/3/1969)

2.50% Multiplier {80% max)
60

8 years

55/25

50/25

55/15

5 years

1.27%

1/1/2018

Yes (Adopted 11/3/1969)

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019



11 - Clerical: Closed to new hires

Benefit Multiplier:
Normal Retirement Age:
Vesting:

Early Retirement {Unreduced):

Early Retirement (Reduced):

Final Average Compensation:

Employee Contributions:
DC Plan for New Hires:
Act 88:

2019 Valuation

2018 Valu.ation

2.50% Multiplier (80% max}
60

10 years

55/25

50/25

55/15

5 years

2.09%

3/1/2018

Yes (Adopted 11/3/1969)

20 - Comma'_n_d:-Open Division -

Benefit Multiplier:
Normal Retirement Age:
Vesting:

Early Retirement (Unreduced):

Early Retirement (Reduced):

Final Average Compensation:

Employee Contributions:
Act 88:

2019 Véluétion '

2.50% Multiplier {80% max)
60

10 years

55/25

50/25

55/15

Svyears

1.27%

3/1/2018

Yes {Adopted 11/3/1969)

2018 Valuation

2.50% Multiplier (80% max}
60

10 years

55/25

50/25

55/15

5 years

2.00%

Yes (Adopted 11/3/1969)

2.50% Multiplier {80% max)
60

10 years

55/25

50/25

55/15

5 years

1.75%

Yes {Adopted 11/3/1969)

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019

-10-



Table 3: Participant Summary

2019 Valuation - 2018 Valuation 2019 Valuation’
| ; 1 ]| Average | Average
k Annual '_Anm_lé_l [Average| Benefit | Eligibitity.
Division |Number| Payroll® -INumber| Payroll® Age | Service® | Service”
01 - AFSIMIE
Active Employees 15] § 918,533 16]$ 951,771 423 11.2 11.2
Vested Former Employees 3 66,914 3 66,914 536 16.6 210
Retirees and Beneficiaries 9 260,058 g 250,743 67.6
Pending Refunds 0 0
02 - Pol/Fire
Active Employees 8|S 670,884 9]1s 724,99 48.0 217 223
Vested Former Employees 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Retirees and Beneficiaries 7 122,656 7 122,654 67.4
Pending Refunds 2 2
10- Nen Unien
Active Employees 3]s 246,132 418 321,612 56.3 16.7 16.7
Vested Former Employees 5 53,143 5 53,141 529 6.4 132
Retirees and Beneficiaries 8 290,152 8 212,494 68.1
Pending Refunds 3 3
11 - Clerical
Active Employees 21s 87,804 35 134,465 56.5 12.2 12.2
Vested Former Employees 0 4] 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Retirees and Beneficiaries 6 98,683 5 58,553 67.0
Pending Refunds 5 5
20 - Command
Active Employees 41S 397,788 5] S 455,442 46.8 235 235
Vested Former Employees 1 38,280 0 0 446 17.8 17.8
Retirees and Beneficiaries 1 67,839 1 67,839 67.6
Pending Refunds o 0
Total Municipality
Active Employees 32]s 2,321,141 37{$ 2,588,286 46.5 15.9 16.1
Vested Former Employees 9 158,337 8 120,055 52.2 111 16.3
Retirees and Beneficiaries 31 839,301 30 712,283 67.6
Pending Refunds 10 0
Total Participants 32 85

Annual payroll for active employees; annual deferred benefits payable for vested former employees; annual benefits
being paid for retirees and beneficiaries.

Descriptions can be found under Miscellaneous and Technical Assumptions in the Appendix.

South Lyon, City of {6315) - 2015

-11-



Table 4: Reported Assets (Market Value)

2019 Valuation. . |- 2018 Valuation
Employer and .. .| Employerand

Division . _ ' Retiree® . || 'Employee® ‘| . Retiree’ | Employee® -
01 - AFSME 5 3,386,891 | 5 150,228 | $ 3,001,382 S 141,888
02 - Pol/Fire 2,866,037 107,679 2,651,500 106,345
10 - Non Union 2,651,772 79,1%6 2,091,068 89,023
11 - Clerical 954,110 36,943 864,249 33,551
20 - Command 1,766,687 84,978 1,707,705 95,422
Municipality Total® $ 11625498 | $ 459,024 | § 10,315,905 | § 466,230
Combined Assets’ $12,084,522 $10,782,135

Reserve for Employer Contributions and Benefit Payments.
Reserve for Employee Contributions.

Totals may not add due to rounding.

The December 31, 2019 valuation assets (actuarial value of assets) are equal to 1.013179 times the reported
market value of assets {(compared to 1.095342 as of December 31, 2018). Refer to the Appendix for a
description of the valuation asset derivation and a detailed calculation of valuation assets.

South Lyon, City of {6315} - 2019




Table 5: Flow of Valuation Assets

" Investment S R
Year _ : y .| Income o7 I Employee | _ ©. Valuation
Ended . Employer Cantributions . Employee |- (Valuation ‘Benefit > | Contribution’| - : Net - Asset
12/31 | - Required Additional | Contributions ; Assets) " payments . |- Refunds | Transfers . " Balancé; B
2009 |$ - 377646 Is 2207 )s . aw7s1a|s o (aaseis s S0 oS s 7,229,085
2010 373,267 - 29381 465669  (272,954)] ol 0 7,824,448
2011 | 391,853 | of- 29480 456,252 | . {318,755) 0. 0: 8,383,278
2012 382,514 0 28,224 425,240 ~ (368,886) 0 0 8,850,370
2013 390,205 0 28,199 558,574 (410,472) -0 0 9,416,876
2014 - 407,859 9,252 27,803 554,736 ‘(485354)| - . 0 L0 9,931,172
2015 417,850 2,418 27,094 505,738 (578,427  (383) 0 10,305,462
2016 469,769 - 676 29,301 557,986 (574326)] - (1,541) D 10,787,327
2017 525,383 4,304 34,784 667,228 (591,458) 0 0 11,427,567
2018 547,683 11,471 45,616 430,388 +/(652,600)| . o 0 11,810,125
2019 573,966 7,731 47,115 572,587 (767,721)| ) 1 112,243,784
Notes:

Transfers in and out are usually related to the transfer of participants between municipalities, and to employer and employee payments for service credit purchases (if
any) that the governing body has approved.

Additional employer contributions, if any, are shown separately starting in 2011. Prior to 2011, additicnal contributions are combined with the required emplioyer
contributions.

The investment inceme column reflects the recognized investment income based on Valuation Assets. It does not reflect the market value investment return in any
given year,

The Valuation Asset batance includes assets from Surplus divisions, if any.

Years where historical infermation is not available, will be displayad with zero values.

GRS

South Lyon, City of {6315) — 2019

-13-




Table 6: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities and Valuation Assets
as of December 31, 2019 -

" Actuarial Accrued Liability " Unfunded
B _ Vested ) _.'(Overfunded)

Active .- Former | Retirees and " Pending : S Percent "+ Accrued

Division Employees ‘Employees | Beneficiarles | - Refunds . | - Tetal. . |Valdation Assets Fiunded © ‘Liabilities
01 - AFSME § 2152788 % BO0332 | & 2,887,790 | §_ 0[5 Ge408/0|5 3,583,735 63.5%) & 2,057,135
02 - Pol/Fira 3278050 | - o -1,243,684 37063 - 4525440 . 3,012,906 66.6%) 1,512,534
10 - Non Union 1,038,544 365,144 2,967,381 5,651 4,578,020 2,766,960 | 63.2%| 1,611,060
11-Clerjeal - 234,535 o 1,013,262 9,250} © 4,257,047 1,004,314 " 79.9%|. 7 2u3e33
20 - Command 2,012,817 141,917 643,295 0 2,798,029 1,876,069 67.1%| 921,960
Total $  B717094| s 1107393 |5 8755412 % 18,607 | & 18,599,406 | $ = 12,243,784 -'65.8%] § 6,355,622

Please see the Comments on Asset Smoothing in the Executive Summary of this report.

South Lycn, City of (6315) - 2019

14-




Table 7: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule

' Unfundk_e'd _—
. | |  {Overfunded)

* Valuation Date - Actuarial : : . Percent Accrued
* December 31 Accrued Liability | Valuation Assets |* -~ Funded. Liabilities . - -
2005 6936238 | %  5109827| - 74% - 1,826,411
2006 7,484,995 5,645,947 75% 1,839,048
2007 - 8026181 | - 6230762 78%. 1,795,419
2008 9,075,100 | 6,652,636 73% 2,422,464
2009 9,805,033 7,229,085 74% ' 2,575,948
2010 10,402,369 7,824,448 0 75% 2,577,924
2011 11,143,466 8,383,278 75% 2,760,188
2012 - 11,604,233 8850370  76% 2,753,863
2013 12,141,556 9,416,876 78% 2,724,680
2014 113,449,214 9,931,172 CT74% 13,518,042
2015 14,840,169 10,305,462 69% 4,534,707
2016 15,590,665 10,787,327 69% 4,803,338
2017 16,363,409 | - 11,427,567 C70% 4,935,842
2018 17,359,423 11,810,125 68% 5,549,298
2019 118,599,406 12,243,784 " 66% 6,355,622

The Valuation Assets include assets from Surplus divisions, if any.

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values.

Notes: Actuarial assumptlons were revised for the 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 2012, 2015 and 2019 actuarlal valuations.

Throughout this report are references to valuation results generated prior to the 2018 valuation date.
Results prior to 2018 were received directly from the prior actuary or extracted from the previous
valuation system by MERS's technelogy service provider.

South Lyon, City of {6315) - 2019

-15-



Tables 8 and 9: Division-Based Comparative Schedules

Division 01 - AFSME

Table 8-01: Actuarial Accrued Liahbilities - Comparative Schedule

Unfunded
ARSI v _ .o o | (Overfunded) -

ValuationDate | Actu’érial ) o <. Percent. - - " Accrued-

December31 * Accrued Liability - | Valuation Assets' | Funded = Liabilities
c2009 . s 3267878 S o 2385930 . 73%. . |5 881,948
2010 3,440,471 2,579,141 75% 861,330
c2011 ) 3708511 2736627 L 74% 7 -971,884
2012 3,803,340 2,873,820 76% 929,520
2003 | . 3seei20| - 30619s| e . | - saszs
20140 ) azssgea| - 3203437 o o73% | 182557
2015 4,781,427 3,211,196 67% 1,570,231
2016 - | 0 4931980 3250213 | .%o | 1,681,767
2017 5,003,141 3,362,869 67% 1,640,272
2018 .- 5405803 | - © 3,442,956 | o oea% | 1,962,847
20109 | . se40870) o casesyss| ea% | 2,057,135

Notes: Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015 and 2019 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-01: Computed Employer Contributions - Comparatlue Schedule

_ Actwe Employees . Computed Employee
Valuation Date. |, _ R ' Annual .~ Employer | Contribution
December 31 - E '_Numbe_i" : ' Payroll o Contribution® " |- - Rate® '
2009 .. 7 B |S  . B42,905 1451% | 1.23%
2010 16 814,745 14.83% 1.23%
2011 o e 0 sespe8|. o 1sT% | 123%
2012 16 820,436 - 16.08% 1.23%
2013 - ] A I g3305| . 1s11% 1.23%
014 - f0 0 as £ 710,251 L1953% | 1.23%
2015 15 726,019 | 23.46% 1.23%
2016 - ; 6|~ csos27z| .0 2293% | 123% -
2017 16 834,168 o 21.33% 2.50%
2018 : |16 951,771 $18,639 2.50%
2019 o 15 918,533 $19,597 - 2.50%

1 For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shewn. For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.
2 For each valuation year, the computed employer contribution is based on the employee rate. If the employee rate
changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will be adjusted.
Note: The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2019 valuations do not reflect the phase-in
of the increased contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions. The full contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table 9 above.
Sea the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available, will be displayed with zerc values.

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019




Division 02 - Pol/Fire

Table 8-02: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule

Unfunded
. R : o _(Overfunded) -

Valuation Date || - Actuarial . - | Percent” | Accrued
" December 31 ‘Accrued Liability | Valuation Assets “Funded: |- - Liabilities-
2009 - | S 2044070 ]8 1,450,389 [ 71% $ . 593,681
2010 2,165,598 1,580,636 3% | 584962
2011 2380367 0 7220830 7% - 658,334
2012 2,544,835 1,862,267 73% . 682,568
2013 . | 2573381 © cig30008|  7s% . | 643,173
2014 o 3,004,646 2207453 0 74% | 797,103
2015 3,417,339 2,385,610 70% 1,031,729
so16° | 3644116 2587869 | . 7% | 1056247
2017 3,963,032 2,827,916 71% 1,135,116
2018 | 4,321,387 3,020,783 - 0% 1,300,604
2019 oo | 4gmasad0f . - 3012906 C67% . 1,512,534

Notes: Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015 and 2019 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-02: Computed Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule

Actwe Employees L ) Computed . ~-Employee
Valuation Date R 1 “:Annual Employer o Contnbut:on
" December 31 - Number | . Payroll . | ‘Contribution’ | . " Rate®
2009 B 11]s 814,022 IEE) 7% | 080%
2010 Y 788,715 13.62% 0.80%
2011 o © 792314 . 14.20% 0:80%
2012 o 798,296 14.80% 0.80%
2013 S 10 714,630 - 15.18% 0.80% -
2014 1) o7szazi| o 1632% 0 0.80%
2015 _ 10 756,733 18.62% 0.80%
2016 ERET) I 759,278 - 1870% | .. “1.00% -
2017 10 780,165 19.31% 1.00%
2018 |- el o 728998 0 s1a286 |- 1.00%
208 | 8| . 670884 - $1s574 | 1.00%

1 Foropen divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown. For closed divisions, a menthly dollar contribution is shown.
2 For each valuation year, the computed employer contributicn is based on the employee rate. if the employee rate
changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will be adjusted,
Note: The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2019 valuations do not reflect the phase-in
of the increased contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions. The full contribution without

phase-in is shown in Takle 9 above,
See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available, will be displayed with zero values.

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019




Division 10 - Non Union

Table 8-10: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule

Unfunded

_ Y RN (Overfunded)

ValuationDate |~ Actuarial . ] - Percent. Accried

" December 31 .Accrued Liability | Valuation Assets | Funded | Liabilities
2009 - |$  259672a{$ - 1se9141| - 72% . |$ 727,583
2010 2,722,477 1,957,119 7% 765,358
200 | - 2780252 - 202917) o 73w ' 751,135,
2012 2,875,321 2,034,475 71% _ 840,846
2013 | 2,899,374 |- 2145607 | . 7a%. | 753,767
2014 -} 00 3050324 2200607 2% | sas7az
2015 3,246,469 2,248,232 69% 998,237
2006 | 3344356 . 2311000 - e9% | '1,033166
2017 3,531,675 2,403,779 68% 1,127,896
2008 | 3562997) 2387946 - e7% - | 1,175,081
2009 | 4378020 . 2766960 ) e3nt | 1,611,060

Notes: Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015 and 2619 actuarial valuations.

Table 9 10 Computed Emplover Contnbutlons Comparative Schedule

- _ Actwe Employees S Computed. ‘Employee - -
Valuation Daté . w7 Annual - Employer . Contribution
December 31 . N'umbei' R Payroll . -'Contrib_u:t'iohl_ 21 Rae®:
2009 . 8|sS.. . 555 215 S 1683%. | . 127%
2010 7 474,963 18.52% 1.27%
2011 6 409,759 20.47% 127% -
2012 6 416,489 | 22.74% 1.27%
2013 - 4 282,712 - 2s67% | 1w
2014 5 399,245 | - . 2234% | . 127%
2015 5 387,215 26.24% 127%
2016 6 assa18| 0 2469% | - 127%
2017 5 411,702 | $9,202 1.27%
2018 4 321,612~ $8664 1.27%
2019 o3 0 s3] 0 $12,556 127%

1 For open divisions, a percent of pay contributicn is shown. For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.
2 For each valuation year, the computad employer contribution is based on the employee rate. i the employee rate
changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will be adjusted,
Note: The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2019 valuations do not reflect the phase-in
of the increased contribution requirements asscciated with the new actuarial assumptions. The full contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table § above,
See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available, will be displayed with zero values.

South Lyon, City of {6315} - 2019 -18-




Division 11 - Clerical

Table 8-11: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule

Unfunded
. . S . _ {0verfunded) :
Valuation Date Actuarial - R . Percent -  Accrued
December31. | Accrued Liability | Valuation Assets Funded " Liabilities
~ 2008 s ssoss2|$§ . 533,264 C97% S . 17,588
2010 648,287 593,332 92% | 54,955
2011 714,586 | 651,504 Ce1% 63,082
2012 785,452 708,908 90% 76,544
2013 747117 | 705,843 . 95% 141,274
2014 809,843 769,504 | ' 95% . - 40,339
2015 921,004 830,807 50% 190,197
2016 993,440 901,790 . 91% 91,650
2017 1,061,743 963,184 91% 98,559
2018 . 1,125,246 | 983,399 B7% 141,847
2019 1,257,047 1,004,114 80% 252,933

Naotes: Actuarial assurnptions were revised for the 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015 and 2019 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-11: Computed Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule

. " Active Employees Computed - - Employee

Valuation Date o ) - Annual Employer. | Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution® |~ Rate®
2009 3R] "11.00% . - 0.00%
2010 6 233,246 12.54% 1.27%
2011 6 233,744 12.47% - 1.27%
2012 6 241,452 12.92% 1.27%
2013 6 224,913 12.22% 11.27%
2014 . 6 230,861 7 12,14% 127%
2015 6 230,782 14.68% 1.27%
2016 6 250,196 14.40% C1.27%
2017 4 165,646 13.99% 1.27%
2018 3 134,465 $1,786 L 127%
2019 2 87,804 $2,397 2.09%

1 For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown. For ciosed divisions, a monthly doliar contribution is shown,

2 For each valuation year, the computed employer contribution is based on the employee rate. If the employee rate

changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will be adjusted.

Note: The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2019 valuations do not reflect the phase-in

of the increased contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions. The full contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table § above.

See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available, will be displayed with zero values.

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019




Division 20 - Command

Table 8-20: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule

“Unfunded
. L _ : 1 : (Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actua'rial I _ ' Percent 1 Accrued
December 31 - *| Accrued Liability | Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities -
2009 - S - 1,345509|S 990361 74% - . | S . 355,148
2010 o 1,425,536 1,114,220 78% 311,316
- 2011 1 - usse7so| 1243997 s0% A 315,753
2012 1,595,285 1,370,900 86% ' 224,385
12013 2025764 1573513 o7ew | o as2251
2004 | 2198407 2550710 7% b - 648236
2015 2,473,930 1,629,617 66% 844,313
2016 | 2676773 . a73ees| 65w 940,508
2017 2,803,818 1,869,819 67% 933,999
2018~ f . 2943990} 1975081 6% - - | 968,949
2019 - 2,798,029 1,876,069 0 67% . 921,860

Notes: Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015 and 2012 actuarial valuatlons

Table 9- 20 Computed Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule

Actwe Employees. | = ‘Computed | ' Employée
\I'aluat_ion Date f_ N . Annual - Employer o " Contribution .*

December 31 _ N_u_mber R . [ Contributmn " Rate’
2009 - ' ~sls a20a50] i3 17%._ 0,86%
2010 5 401,619 13.08% 0.86%
2011 5 -a05,43a| 0 13.43% f - 0.86%
2012 5 396,590 |  12.51% 0.86%
2013 5 397,208 | - 16.23% - 086%
..2014 51 430,243 |°- 0 1838% |- --0.86%
2015 5 432,493 21.71% 0.86%

20167 5 4523361 © . 2254% | 1.00%
2017 - 451,433 | 22.24% 1.50%

© 2018 5 455,442 .o2266% | 1.75%
2019 ; : 4.~ 397788} ¢ | 2452% - 2.00%

1 For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown. For closed divisions, a menthly dellar contribution is shown.
2 For each valuatien year, the computed employer contribution is based on the employee rate. If the employee rate
changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will be adjusted.
Note: The contributions shown in Table § for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2019 valuations do nok reflect the phase-in
of the increased contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions. The full contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table 9 above.
See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available, will be displayed with zero values.

G R S South Lyon, City of {6315) - 2019 -20-




Table 10: Division-Based Layered Amortization Schedule

Division 01 - AFSME

Tahle 10-01: Layered Amortization Schedule

Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 7/1/2021
_ . '+ Original - |- - 'Remaining . * Annual
_ Pate - Original " Amortization Outstandirig = Amortization  Amortization
Type of UAL | Established -~ Balance . Period’ | uALBalance’  Period’ - -Payment -
Initial 12/31/2015 & 1,570,231 23 s 1,693,174 19 5 130,572
(Gain}/Loss |12/31/2016 46,584 22 52,802 19 4,068
(Gain)/Loss | 12/31/2017 (61,945) 21 (69,743) 19 {5,376)
Amendment |12/31/2017 (10,302) 21 (11,593) 19 {900)
(Gain}/Loss | 12/31/2018 312,194 20 348,929 15 26,988
{Gain)/Loss |12/31/2019 (107,303) 19 (119,348) 19 (9,204)
Assumption {12/31/2019 170,211 19 178,153 1% 13,740
Total S 2,073,374 5 159,888

' For each type of UAL {layer}, this is the original balance as of the date the layer was establisked.
? According to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL (layer) is amartized over a specific period (see Appendix on MERS website).

* This is the remaining balance as of the valuaticn date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL) as of December 31, 2019 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fisca!
year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2019 valuation to take into account the

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over the
appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and original amartizaticn periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019 -21-




Division 02 - Pol/Fire

Table 10-02: Layered Amortization Schedule

_ Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 7/1/2021

_ Original o Remaining > .Annual
Date - Original ©~  Amortization Outstanding ~  Amortization  Amortization

Type of UAL | Established Balance® - Period’ UALBalance® .~ Period’ = - pPayment .

Initial 12/31/2015 & 1,031,729 23 5 1,105,319 19 $ 85,236
(Gain)/Loss | 12/31/2016 (9,120) 22 (10,344) 19 (804)
Amendment |12/31/2016 102 22 102 19 12
(Gain)/Loss | 12/31/2017 55,683 21 67,194 19 5,184
{Gain)/Loss | 12/31/2018 152,161 20 170,545 15 13,152
{Gain)/Loss | 12/31/2019 53,077 19 59,035 19 4,548
Assumption |12/31/2019 133,668 19 146,078 19 11,268
Total 5 1,537,929 5 118,596

! For each type of UAL (layer), this is the original balance as of the date the layer was established.
2 According to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL {layer) is amortized over a specific period {see Appendix on MERS website).

® This is the remaining balance as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL) as of December 31, 2019 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal
year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2019 valuation to take into account the

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations, Each type of UAL (layer)} is amortized over the
appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and original amortization periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019

22



Division 10 - Non Union

~Table 10-10: Layered Amortization Schedule

S Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 7/1/2021 .

Original S Remaining . Annual

_ _ Date Original Amottization Outstanding ~  Amortization Amdftizatfon
Typeof UAL | Established ~ Balance' " Period’ - UAL Balahce®. Period” - Payment -
initial 12/31/2015 5 898,237 23 S 1,054,864 19 S 81,348
(Gain)/Loss |12/31/2016 12,232 22 13,852 19 1,068
(Gain)/Loss |12/31/2017 79,154 21 89,116 19 6,876
(Gain}/Loss | 12/31/2018 31,742 20 35,576 19 2,748
(Gain)/Loss [12/31/2019 279,457 19 310,827 19 23,976
Assumption |12/31/2019 146,256 18 153,932 19 11,868
Total [ 1,658,167 5 127,884

! For each typa of UAL (layer), this is the original batance as of the date the layer was established.
? According to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL {layer} is amortized over a specific period (see Appendix on MERS website).
# This is the remaining balance as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability {UAL} as of December 31, 2019 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal
year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2019 valuation to take into account the

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL {layer} is amortized over the
appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and ariginal amortization periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

South Lyon, City of {6315) - 2019 -23-




Division 11 - Clerical

Table 10-11: Layered Amortization Schedule

- - -"Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 7/1/2021

o Original S ~ Remairiing Annual
‘Date Original Amortization| .- Outstanding - = Amortization  Amortization. -

Type of UAL | Established. - Balance® ~ Period” | = UALBalance® - Period” - payment
Initial 12/31/2015 S 80,197 23 S 102,733 15 S 7,920
(Gain}/Loss | 12/31/2016 {5,246) 22 (5,945} 19 {456)
(Gain}/Loss |12/31/2017 3,351 21 3,769 19 288
(Gain}/Loss |12/31/2018 42,420 20 47,547 19 3,672
(Gain}/Loss | 12/31/2019 70,604 19 78,529 19 6,060
Assumption |12/31/2019 37,383 19 40,273 19 3,108
Amendment |12/31/2019 477) 19 {531) 19 (36}
Total $ 266,375 $ 20,556

! For each type of UAL (layer), this is the original balance as of the date the |ayer was establishad.

2 accarding to the MERS amertization policy, each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over a specific period (see Appendix on MERS website).

3 This is the remaining balance as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL} as of December 31, 2019 (see Table &) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal
year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2019 valuation to take into account the

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over the
appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Mote: The original balance and original amertization periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

South Lyon, City of {6315} - 2019

_24-



Division 20 - Command

Table 10-20: Layered Amortization Schedule

" Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 7/1/2021-

o _ ‘Original 5 ©- " 'Remaining ~ Annual

. Date © Original - Amortization | Outstanding Ambrtiz_éltion ’ Amortization

Type of UAL | Established :© Balance® - . ‘Period” . | -UALBalance® _ Period” - Ppayment -
Initial 12/31/2015 5 844,313 23 S 904,746 i9 5 69,768
{Gain)/Loss [ 12/31/2016 67,677 22 76,717 19 5,916
Amendment |12/31/2016 (295) 22 (333} 19 (24}
(Gain)/Loss | 12/31/2017 (30,319) 21 (34,133) 19 (2,628)
Amendment |12/31/2017 3,487 21 3,920 19 300
(Gain)/Loss }12/31/2018 27,195 20 30,482 19 2,352
Amendment |12/31/2018 (640} 20 (722} 19 (60}
{(Gain)/Loss }12/31/2019 (137,603) 19 (153,049) 19 (11,808}
Assumption }12/31/2019 83,852 19 88,354 19 6,816
Amendment [ 12/31/2019% (362) 19 {403) 19 (36}
Total S 915,579 s 70,596

! For each type of UAL {layer), this is the criginal balance as of the date the layer was established.,
? pccording to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over a specific period {see Appendix on MERS website).
* This is the remaining balanca as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above,

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL) as of December 31, 2019 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal
year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2019 valuation to take into account the
expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over the

appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and original amortization pericds prior to 12/31/2018 were received frem the prior actuary.

Seuth Lyon, City of {6315) - 2019

-25-



GASB 68 Information

The following information has been prepared to provide some of the information necessary to complete GASB
Statement No. 68 disclosures. Statement 68 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014,
Additional resources, including an Implementation Guide, are available at http://www.mersofmich.com/.

Actuarial Valuation Date:
Measurement Date of the Total Pension Liability (TPL):

At 12/31/2019, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits:
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving henefits (including refunds):
Active employees:

Tota! Pension Liability as of 12/31/2018 measurement date: S
Tota! Pension Liability as of 12/31/2019 measurement date: S
Service Cost for the year ending on the 12/31/2019 measurement date: S
Change in the Total Pension Liability due to:
- Benefit changes™: S
- Differences between expected and actual experiencezz S
- Changes in assumptions’: S

Average expected remaining service lives of ali employees {active and inactive):

A change in liability due to benefit changes is immediately recognized when calculating pension expense for the year.

2 Changes Tn liability due to differences between actual and expected experience, and changes in assumptions, are
recognized in pension expense over the average remaining service lives of all employees.

Covered employee payroll: (Needed for Required Supplementary Information) 5

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the discount rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount
{6.60%) Rate (7.60%)
Change in Net Pension Liability as of 12/31/2019: $ 2,197,401 ) - S

12/31/2019
12/31/2019

31
19
32
82
16,883,924
18,084,604

238,655

(851)
(148,563)
549,607

4

2,321,141

1% Increase

{8.60%)
(1,858,146)

Note: The current discount rate shown for GASB 68 purposes is higher than the MERS assumed rate of return.

This is because for GASB 68 purposes, the discount rate must be gross of administrative expenses, whereas

for funding purposes it is net of adminisirative expenses.

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019

-26-



Benefit Provision History

The following benefit provision history is provided by MERS. Any corrections to this history or discrepancies
between this information and information displayed elsewhere in the valuation report should be reported to
MERS. All provisions are listed by date of adoption.

01- AFSME
2/1/2018 Non-Accelerated Amortization
2/1/2018 DC Adoption Date 02-01-2018
11/1/2017 Participant Contribution Rate 2.5%
12/1/2016 Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes
11/1/2008 Benefit B-4 (80% max)
11/1/2008 Member Contribution Rate 1.23%
2/1/2000 Benefit B-3 (80% max)
2/1/2000 Member Contribution Rate 0.00%
3/10/1998 Temporary 8 Year Vesting (03/10/1998 - 05/12/1998)
7/1/1994 Benefit B-2
7/1/1954 Member Contribution Rate 3.40%
7/171981 Benefit F55 (With 25 Years of Service)
7/1/1981 Member Contribution Rate 0.00%
1/1/1979 Benefit B-1
5/12/1975 Exclude Temporary Employees
11/3/1969 Covered by Act 88
7/1/1967 Benefit FAC-5 (5 Year Final Average Compensation)
7/1/1967 10 Year Vesting
7/1/1967 Benefit C-1 (Old)
7/1/1967 Member Contribution Rate 3.00% Under $4,200.00 - Then 5.00%
7/1/1967 Fiscal Month - July
Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60
Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years
02 - Pol/Fire
4/1/2018 Non-Accelerated Amortization
4/1/2018 DC Adoption Date 04-01-2018
12/1/2016 Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes
9/1/2016 Participant Contribution Rate 1%
10/1/2008 Benefit B-4 {80% max)
10/1/2008 Member Contribution Rate 0.80%
7/1/2001 Benefit B-3 (80% max)
7/1/2001 Member Contribution Rate 0.00%
7/1/1993 Benefit B-2
7/1/1993 Member Contribution Rate 2.80%
7/1/1981 Member Contribution Rate 0.00%
7/1/1979 Benefit F55 (With 25 Years of Service}
1/1/197%9 Benefit B-1
5/12/1975 Exclude Temporary Employees
11/3/1969 Covered by Act 88
7/1/1967 Benefit FAC-5 (5 Year Final Average Compensation})
7/1/1967 10 Year Vesting

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2015




02 - Pol/Fire
7/1/1967
7/1/1967
7/1/1967

10 - Non Union

1/1/2018
1/1/2018
12/1/2016
4/1/2009
4/1/2009
4/1/2009
7/1/2001
7/1/2001
9/1/1993
9/1/1993
9/1/1993
9/1/1993
9/1/1993
5/12/1975
11/3/1969
7/1/1967

11 - Clerical
7/1/2019
3/1/2019
3/1/2018
3/1/2018

12/1/2016
1/1/2010
1/1/2010
7/1/2002
7/1/2002
7/1/1895
7/1/1995
7/1/1994
7/1/19%4
7/1/1994
7/1/1994
7/1/1954

5/12/1975

11/3/1969
7/1/1967

Benefit C-1 (Old)

Member Contribution Rate 3.00% Under $4,200.00 - Then 5.00%
Fiscal Month - July

Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60

Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

Non-Accelerated Amortization

DC Adoption Date 01-01-2018

Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes

8 Year Vesting

Benefit B-4 {80% max)

Member Contribution Rate 1.27%

Benefit B-3 {80% max)

Member Contribution Rate 0.00%

Benefit FAC-5 {5 Year Final Average Compensation)
10 Year Vesting

Benefit B-2

Benefit F55 (With 25 Years of Service)

Member Contribution Rate 3.40%

Exclude Temporary Employees

Covered by Act 88

Fiscal Month - July

Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60

Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

Participant Contribution Rate 2.09%
Participant Contribution Rate 1.68%
Non-Accelerated Amortization

DC Adoption Date 03-01-2018

Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes
Benefit B-4 (80% max)

Member Contribution Rate 1.27%

Benefit B-3 {80% max)

Member Contribution Rate 0.00%

Benefit B-2

Member Contribution Rate 3.40%

Benefit FAC-5 {5 Year Final Average Compensation)
10 Year Vesting

Benefit B-1

Benefit F55 (With 25 Years of Service)
Member Contribution Rate 0.00%

Exclude Temporary Employees

Covered by Act 88

Fiscal Month - July

Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60
Early Reduced {.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2015

-28-



20 - Command
7/1/201%
7/1/2018
7/1/2017

12/1/2016
9/1/2016
7/1/2008
7/1/2008
7/1/2008
7/1/2008
7/1/2008
7/1/2008

11/3/1969
7/1/1967

Participant Contribution Rate 2%

Participant Contribution Rate 1.75%

Participant Contribution Rate 1.5%

Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes

Participant Contribution Rate 1%

Benefit FAC-5 {5 Year Final Average Compensation)
Exclude Temporary Employees

10 Year Vesting

Benefit B-4 (80% max)

Benefit F55 (With 25 Years of Service)

Member Contribution Rate 0.86%

Covered by Act 88

Fiscal Month - July

Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60

Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019

-29-



Plan Provisions, Actuarial Assumptions, and
Actuarial Funding Method

Details on MERS plan provisions, actuarial assumptions, and actuarial methodology can be found in the
Appendix. Some actuarial assumptions are specific to this municipality and its divisions. These are listed
below.

Increase in Final Average Compensation

FAC Increase
Division Assumption

All Divisions 4.00%

Withdrawal Rate Scaling Factor

Withdrawal Rate
Division Scaling Factor

All Divisions 100%

Miscellaneous and Technical Assumptions

Loads — None.

Amortization Policy for Closed Divisions

Closed Division Amortization Option

All Closed Divisions Non-Accelerated Amortization

Please see the Appendix on MERS website for a detailed description of the amaortization options available for closed
divisions within an open municipality.

South Lyon, City of {6315) - 2019




Risk Commentary

Determination of the accrued liability, the employer contribution, and the funded ratio reguires the use of
assumptions regarding future economic and demographic experience. Risk measures, as illustrated in this
report, are intended to aid in the understanding of the effects of future experience differing from the
assumptions used in the course of the actuarial valuation. Risk measures may also help with illustrating the
potential volatility in the accrued liability, the actuarially determined contribution and the funded ratio that
result from the differences between actual experience and the actuarial assumptions.

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this

report due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic or

demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions due to changing conditions;
increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used for these
measurements (such as the end of an amortization period, or additional cost or contribution requirements

based on the Plan’s funded status); and changes in plan provisions or applicable law. The scope of an actuarial

valuation does not include an analysis of the potential range of such future measurements.

Examples of risk that may reasonably be anticipated to significantly affect the plan’s future financial condition

include:

¢ Invesiment Risk — actual investment returns may differ from the expected returns;

o Asset/Liability Mismatch — changes in asset values may not match changes in liabilities, thereby aitering

the gap between the accrued liability and assets and consequently altering the funded status and
contribution requirements;

e Salary and Payroll Risk — actual salaries and total payroll may differ from expected, resulting in actual
future accrued liability and contributions differing from expected;

¢ Longevity Risk -~ members may live longer or shorter than expected and receive pensions for a period of

time other than assumed; and

» Other Demographic Risks ~ members may terminate, retire or become disabled at times or with benefits

other than assumed resulting in actual future accrued liability and contributions differing from expected.

The effects of certain trends in experience can generally be anticipated. For example, if the investment
return since the most recent actuarial valuation is less (or more} than the assumed rate, the cost of the

plan can be expected to increase (or decrease). Likewise, if longevity is improving {or worsening),
increases (or decreases} in cost can be anticipated.

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019

-31-



PLAN MATURITY MEASURES

Risks facing a pension plan evelve over time. A young plan with virtually no investments and paying few
benefits may experience little investment risk. An older plan with a large number of members in pay status
and a significant trust may be much more exposed to investment risk. Generally accepted plan maturity
measures include the following:

12/31/2019 12/31/2018

1. Ratio of the market value of assets to total payroll 5.2 4.2
2. Ratio of actuarial accrued liability to payroll 8.0 6.7
3. Ratio of actives to retirees and beneficiaries 1.0 1.2
4, Ratio of market value of assets to benefit payments 15.7 16.5
5. Ratio of net cash flow to market value of assets (boy) -1.3% -0.4%

RATIO OF MARKET VALUE OF ASSETS TO TOTAL PAYROLL

The relationship between assets and payroll is a useful indicator of the potential volatility of contributions.
For example, if the market value of assets is 2.0 times the payroll, a return on assets 5% different than
assumed would equal 10% of payroll. A higher {lower) or increasing (decreasing) level of this maturity
measure generally indicates a higher {lower) or increasing {decreasing) volatility in plan sponsor
contributions as a percentage of payroll.

RATIO OF ACTUARIAL ACCRUED LIABILITY TO PAYROLL

The relationship between actuarial accrued liability and payroll is a useful indicator of the potential volatility
of contributions for a fully funded plan. A funding policy that targets a funded ratio of 100% is expected to
result in the ratio of assets to payroll and the ratio of liability to payroll converging over time.

RATIO OF ACTIVES TO RETIREES AND BENEFICIARIES

A young plan with many active members and few retirees will have a high ratio of active to retirees. A
mature apen plan may have close to the same number of actives to retirees resulting in a ratio near 1.0. A
super-mature or closed plan may have significantly more retirees than actives resulting in a ratio below 1.0.

RATIO OF MARKET VALUE OF ASSETS TO BENEFIT PAYMENTS

The MERS’ Actuarial Policy requires a total minimum contribution equal to the excess {if any) of three times
the expected annual benefit payments over the projected market value of assets as of the participating
municipality otr court’s Fiscal Year for which the contribution applies. The ratio of market value of assets to
benefit payments as of the valuation date provides an indication of whether the division is at risk for
triggering the minimum contribution rule in the near term. If the division triggers this minimum contribution
rule, the required employer contributions could increase dramatically relative to previous valuations.

RATIO OF NET CASH FLOW TO MARKET VALUE OF ASSETS

A positive net cash flow means contributions exceed benefits and expenses. A negative cash flow means
existing funds are being used to make payments. A certain amount of negative net cash flow is generally
expected to occur when benefits are prefunded through a qualified trust. Large negative net cash flows as a
percent of assets may indicate a super-mature plan or a need for additiona! contributions.

South Lyon, City of {6315} - 2019 -32-




State Reporting

The following information has been prepared to provide some of the information necessary to complete
the pension reporting requirements for the State of Michigan’s Local Government Retirement System
Annual Report (Form No. 5572). Additional resources are available at www.mersofmich.com and on the

State website.

Form 5572
Line Reference

10

Description

Membership as of December 31, 2019
Indicite hurmber of active miembers =

ST

Indicate number of inactive members (excluding pendmg refunds)

|Indicate number of retiréés and benéficiaries

Inuestment Performance for Calendar Year Endlng December 31, 2014*

© L 14.09%

Enter actual rate of réturh - pnor_l'-year perlod -
16 Enter actual rate of return - prior 5-year period 6.39%
' Erter actuzl rate'of return - prior 10-yaar period - 7.97%
Actuarial Assumptions
Actuarial assuméd rate ofmvestment réturn’ 75

Amortization method utilized far funding the svstem 5 unfunded actuarlal accrued Izablhty |f any

P Level Percent
21 Amortlza_t!an pe_rlod utilized for funding the system s unfunded actuarial acerued llabliltv, |fany BN I
Is each division within the system closed to new employees?* No
Uniform Assumptions
24 Enter retirement pension system's actuarial value of assets using uniform assumptions 512,172,873
.25 Enter retirément pension systém's actuarial accrited liabilities using-uriiform assumptions - $19,800,004
27 Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) using uniform assumptions, Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020 $912,060

- The Municipal Employees’ Retirement System’s investment performance has been provided to GRS from MERS Investment Staff and
included here for reporting purposes. This investment performance figures reported are net of investment expenses on a rolling
calendar-year basis for the previous 1-, 5-, and 10-year periods as required under PA 530,

% Net of administrative and investment expenses.

each division and the plan in total is expected to reach 100% funded if all assumptions are met.

% If all divisions within the employer are closed, “yes.”

- Populated with the longest amortization period remaining in the amortization schedule, across all divisions in the plan., This is when

If at least one division is open (including shadow divisions) indicate “no.”

South Lyon, City of (6315) - 2019

-33-



